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Group snapshot
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Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 127% in the last year
from £712m in 2022 to

£800m in 705

\
LR
{
Energy generation
Qur renewable energy
assets produce encughn

energy to power over
a million UK homes

Ahkh
w

Number of employees

We employ over 1,500
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 681,101

carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 224 borrowers
N the UK
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Number of sites

We own 229
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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1. Energy

Approsmatng by 50% of the {Groups aet ascets

O assety sbch as soln

energy ganaerating
erergy sites and wind farms, These assets provide
[Ccng-tenr rever thieir salue can
mipacted by

enerdgy S=0lonis mtentonall, diversifiod across a

2 osireams, thouah

shdl e changes i pneng ana demand

Our

range of technolog es W mitigate agamst less

able conditians in a spectfic asset class ara
steady, preditable

favours
contrbate towaras
gronwvth

share price

sclat Aith

which specialiees in aevelo

Wie  exparided  our parfcho further

anditicns in Zestec, ©ng
commercial salar rooltop sites in the UK | hese sites

are currenily under construction, and we exgect 16

retar ard  opetate thom once complete The
constieetion of Guardiondge, our wnd tarm in

Poland, remans on track ana ©n budaget, and wo

expect it to start generating electnoty by Decernber

2023 Dulacca  Wind  Faim. our  iargescale
corstruction project .r Western Australia starteg
gencerating  electnicty  aftor yéar enc aaa was

o

subsequently sold i Ccteber 2024 At the Leginning
of the

the construct-or ard sale of DRarlingten Sont Sclar

Inancial year ir July 2022, we also completed

Farm, ore of the largest solar siesin Australiz, aith a
capacity of 353MW

370 we
ro perfonm well,

O successtul 3 ell-established biorass divsion

certinues delivering stable returms
since acguisition in 2015 We added a row site at
Snettetton 1 Cast Angiia n Apnl 2021
performed well since acguisition Though 1t suffered
WOPthE ¢

which has

pa

SOIME I of operational
gearbox faut

part

dorantime, followang 2
the nsurance claim for replacement

¢ and loes of revenue was settled in Sl

Construction  at our Waste-to Yrergy facility n

Ayeshure nas progressed as planncd with completien
The facilty

and waili be

has

[l

cxpected 1 2025 Ceen in

devetoprment for four years carcable of

-

a4

processing over 185,600 1ennes per annu of non

qousehiola, commercial and industrial

year

which
ihis will generate

WO Otherwiss e sert to landhll o

sl
Cxoorted SO of low Carhon

electncly, enougn o powes 30,000 hares, and it

2l e the first large scale subsioy-free watfe-10-
energy project Incwestern sSeotland

Our 26 reserve puwer dtes have conunued 1o
perform shead  of  oxpectauons,  due o ow
generstion o cwind o assets over the winier
J0220123% 0 resuiting o demand  for additional
genreration o balance the grid

2. Lending

Our propety lendng business contnues to be a

substanual part of the Croup,
15% of the Groups
Mmedium-term secured loans o

representirg arcund
ret assets, comprising short- and
expererced properly

prafessicnals Cur averags lcan ook conuntutedd

cver 224 loans this year 1o borrovers i the LIK
Cur [cans are wiitten at conservative [oan o valle
CI TV levels (selow 70%) to protect agamst a fall in

property pr
LTV for the loan book was
this nmmpariance
strateqy, which has served the Group well over its 13

ces At the enda of the poerod, the average

0% The turbulent marke:

wCar Nas renforced  the of this

bustory  We are naturally talng a cautious

approach whern assessing now iending opportundiés

considenng the changing economic cutlook

1 2010, th
of property loans and has

Since incepticn & Group has lent £7 4%9hn

had a strong tecord of
recovenng its capital However, the abrupt mcreasze in
interest rates i the cur

difficult for some Cono

rent year has made 1t more

wiers Lo refnarce at the end of

tnor loan tenm This has controuwed 1o 3 sal
iNCrease N provisions and, at year erd, we recorded a
provision of £30m aganst ong commercal 1oan

Though this feels

ncteworthy, for context. it armounts to arcund 1% of

we ackrowledge prevision

the Group's net azcets and s an oullior compared 1o

cur track record  This does however serve 1o
emphasise the mportance of our exper ence ard
aporoach i the sector, mdudmg disciplned  due
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resulted noour renewabies assets loans “onunung

O OINCdr (owy Interest Costs, at g ate Nxed when
Interest rates werd [owe

Rising interest «alos are relt more closely o1 o

lenidinmg Dusiness ana as such we continae 1o tage a
We can, ano do

cautous appreach i this sector.

reduce the numibor of loans we write or alter the nsk
profile of our loans through recucing lcan 1o value
rafics, ot the

reatket,

oropausing actraty in certarn parts
as aporopnate

Current trading and outlook
crd d o
trom an opcraticnal perspectrs

Simce the
steadily
andin . ne wath our expectations

ear the Croup has contnae
norfoom

Cur growth targets

tor the Group over the medium and ong-tenn
rermain unchangod. and we continue to foocus on

maintaning & diversified bhusiness that 15 ¢

deliveting predictalhe growth

apabe of
tar shareholders

Ir Novernber 2022, th ced the

Elect

2 gqovernment anncun

rcduction of an k Foity Gererator levy UEGLY

aternncrary measure (¢ charge axccplional receipts

on high revenues tor Groups generating elecinoly

The levy s n effect from 1 January 2023 untit 31

March 2028 and apples o electricty genelated
frorm renewable, Womass, and energy from waste

sources, The Group was rot required 1o pay FGL N
the peviod, however we do expect to pay this mthe

next (inancia: year YWe had already anticipated the

Hmpact on tne returns generaled from our energy

portfulic over lne next five vears

Our property lendimg Rusiness Contiraes o pertonm

straongly wath g diverse oan Rook cemprs rg 224
[o3ns enaverado We fCCus on sncrt-tenm [0ans o
mhthsl catiueh

cnabies us to swaftly adapt to cnarges n oullook We

cdrrerit lean awerage femm s 20

consiger thes s particulatly smportant in the currens

SCONOMIC cumate
O recently consc hdated regienal fbre business
Ferrm Firre Trading Limited ©FFTLY,
out its netwaork te

SOITnNes 0 euid

gecelerate full fikre colivery 0 the

LK, whiie alse focusing on sales ang imarkeing

actraty selling finre products ditecty o CUStOmals,

Asitcortinies o grow and Build cutitsinfrastiuc ture,

we o rol cxpect Itto repert an acoounting crofit in
the coming three t five iinancial years

o~

Dictoher 2024 the

Cxisting

We are pieased to teport that 'n
shareholders

through an offer to subscribe for further shares The

Creup raised £710m from
funds raised will aliow the Group to grove sbightly
ahead of plars in certain sectors, bowever we do not

cxpect this to mstenally change cur Business mix,
which will continue to evolve in order to cartinue 1o

targel modest grawth for sharenclders o the

ToyCars

ahead.

“Our mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by the
overarching importance we place
on meeting the objectives of our

shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do

Tem Tradmg Cintcd i e parent contpan, of roa'y 1 20 Lending division

S The Deoup P oVie lerd on oz osihea and reediuen ternn, sociing d

Tosubs aar es itagethor e

lere g, ik SO & Lo rarmber cf nrondt, ol

which mcudes retncment a3 and ol finang ng erabie bnsinesse,

S Dde DU 4oy

Sl inerees e de A 30 Cummertial e

diversifieg groun O oporstimg cusinesses at e . L
ekt P L 3. Fibre division
1

Shoposioned tee deleer lord-tenn ealug @nd

Some and eperate hbre brzacdlband aetad

precnctsbic gnos T o cur sharshio'ders Githe K

Sl e e

ATHOAG LTI US arEas

0

1. Energy division A Conmcat hem ta Momes 30d nusnes

rererats

Ltcncle Dur Cusamist s aathulb 3t st nlvee broadtsnd

Criciaruy Iesn susia rnakie

sorurees andd eoll the eacrg, oo Jduced evhor dire ey - e
' a ) : 4. Housebuilding division

PG aesigential nousennilany operation aevelops

1o ndustriar conauimars o o large netaorks Many

Surenerable evergy cfes gaal by for goyernmren

ge e final construZton o

sics from desar s
reent ves, that repreen! Gn addtonal slatiens

) Logrsore tho deteery of guat by svorkmsnsiig
hniked, souree of Inco e We Mave aso vhilsed our
Ziperhise i renewalng 2ned s 13 construct fasihines POw rcnrement Lilsoes  Sromdo mon-guahts

B

for sale or ongomg ouetaton At gesr end the Dronp LoCOPEIMIDOrary vng o sgaces  witna tnendily

nad fourteen sites under Consirustion oeommonity at the beart ot coowillages

Fern Trading Limited

Energy Lending

Fibre
Division

Housebuilding

Division Division

Solar, wind. biomass, Property lending. Ultrafast fibre Residential house
tandgfill gas. development broadband across building, Retirement
reserve power financing the UK living

—
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Our business at a glance

The strength of the Group's stratedy 5 e botlhts 1 She scale of ol Busness 1z a Koy stienatk, cnabling
cperaticnal dversity and the crserse relurnm prohles Pous o Acaa e large-scale estaplatied ooeratiors, as
of these buanesses Dur lendimg hLsiness proviaes well as the oppottunity ¢ enter pev sectors vtk
flexibility anc strong refurns over the shor-tenm, i mal sk ote the waole Group by selecting
while oureneray, ibre, househulding and clirament FLusInesses comprchonsive busness glane and
Sving drsicns offer visibility and stability of returrs 1 ostirong maragement teams TR enasles U o
ower the lenger term conbriue  to diverafy  our o busmess  wealniout

compronisieg the guality of ow operations,

Sector split’ — Housebulding 4%
Property 15% — ] ‘i — Retrement viLages 4%

— Reserve gower 6%

— Solar 9%

Fern's sector
allocation
~— andfll gas ana biomass 14%

L

Fiore 26% —

" wind 22%

B B Owning and operating assets 85%
HHE Lending 15%

aseated cntee conpar y balante dheet of Tern Trading [erpsed

St sl s e by alae a3
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Our business at a glance

Where we operate
SO e pwonn hat tho busiestos
"

SINLVIT R e TR T

ettt oL eun ovake g po

Clegrn enarg,y 12 0 Tesion of oes

and the growiien of guahty relirement

Hfrastrcie
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference
We me proud o operate a Grolnp that makcs a

positive contripution to socdiety,  across e LK,

generating  tenewable energy. creviding guaality

et rerpent lung and new hores, and delvenng

bigh-speed broacband to urderscrved aress of the
ceLntiy This s ahqﬂcd fo o envircrintental, sccia, 3
and gaverrance CESGT policy, whicrs diafted and 3
approved by the Roard of Dineciors, :
Energy
Woe owrn 229 cpetstonal energy sites, preduany
IO6AGWH a year Thal's enough energy t0 power |
over a million lomes
Ouwr combinaton of technologes acrass solar wina,
reserve poaer biomass and landnli gas complement
2ach otner well, hetzing the UK t2 meet 1S encrgy |
targets respaclve of the weather
The Fern Comrunity Fund is a social erteronse ran

oy the Group, which works to distnibute community
funds generated from our wind farmes This year, the
Fern Community Fund has committed L1L4m to

N

wocal  community  aroups,  supported JZ20 local

Jrversizy students rrough owr Student Scholarshp
Fund, and provided g wanter fuel subsidy to 40
residents who are local to tne Groun's sies
Lending
The 197 new leans we advanced durmg the year
bave nelped to furd the construction of much
recded resigential properties, as well as commercal
property cregting valuable new employment

Fibre

Witha this division we are bulding ful filye
connesty o hundreds of thousarnds of propertes
i arral towns ard vilages that do nat cusrenily have
access 1o nternet :"ormcclwil;, ersanng ey are fit

for modern ways o working ard communicating

Im vorkoss, we are bulding a dedicated high-speed
filbre nerwark for busincsses 1n Lerdoen, providing
the digital infrastructure that the oty needs. and
remcying  bandwidth constramts t¢ ensure  the

ECONCTY TCMAams Competinve

Housebuilding

Cur housebulding divis on sources over /4% of the
timtber utilised for frames i a sustamable way and
instalis solar parcls or ait scurce heat pumps e all

proporties, leading the wayin this scotor ana helping

reduce Carbon arnissions

O retirement willages prowde  Righ-guality,
corterrporary  living  spaces, with Cclose to 50O
hores curenty in place We have nzatly 400 further
urits onowvaticus stages of development, and our
wecured pipeline sites offer potenual for ancther 300
clus unte

A tnierdy community s a key differentiator for cur
retiternent willages, which w why ouwr develcprmants
provide central faciliies and a huby of secial actvity

for our residents
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Our strategy in focus

Qur businesses
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Our strategy in focus

I add ton o eul Jk sites the Croup e developing
Clen Cverseas in Jurisdiciiens that e wnderstand
well These present ar aUracive oppe tunty as they
fnld on our sector cxpertise In countries at o 4n
carlier stage o renewable developrient Carrently
we opcrate wand farms i elard and France and
sclar sitec i Franco, maddibon to g waird fam unden

constracticon in Poland

During the yvear we acqguired {he nghts to multiple

cormerercal 1ochop sites threugh ow commercial
reoitop sotar developer, Zestec, o which we will
build sclar panels 1o generate electricity for the
terants of the buildimg Cur sites under construction
rAdstralia carre to frumon g year, wita Garlington
Fount a large-scale sclar site seld at the start of the
vear and Dualacoa Wind Fanm achicving commiercial
operatien  shotly  alter year end  ang heng

subzeguently sold in October 2023,

Lending
Lending cont nues to he a core part of our bus.ness
and has provided the Group weath a proftable and
cach generative sector cver the past 13 years. This
well-estapished part of the Groun maimiy consists of
preporty  lendrny

~hich prowdes short-term
nnancing  to expenenced  professional  property
deveiopers, buy-to-let andlerds seeking br daing
finance, ard developmeart inancng, which provides

shiort- and medium-term financng o companies

A key berent of the scale of the Groun ang of the
business that e have DLt upom fhis secior s our
abality to mitigate riss throuah naving a large rumier
of loans cxead acress relatvely small projccts o
mdadual horovenrs We greacively manage

caumtcrparyy sks trcugn wndettakineg carefal

Ly

Borrower due dilgence, waking ¢ WOl asscts

typucaly on oa first charge basic and mamtanng
concervative loan-te-vae ratics MNat all loans will
perform as expecten and these measures kelp o
NLAINNse the mipact of performance 1ssnes on an
ndwidual loar This s funther merigated through the
value that we loend o mdsidual ponowers, relative 1o
our ctal lecan book which 15 spiead on avcrage
actoss 224 loans,

Fibre
Our flbre dvision irciudes fow suslegic areas - fibre
to the premise FETEL enmerprise hbye, software

and mobile

Through our FTTE business, we ae boald ng now
phys.cal iibre networks for communrizies in the LK
and have completed new fbre mfrastracture n
underseryea parts of Devon, Semerset, Dorsel
Witchire,  Hampshine,  Worcestershire,  Yorkshire
and the Heme Countes spanaing hundreds  of
thousand:s of properties

Lending continues to be an

important part of

our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past thirteen years.
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Our strategy in focus
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Our strategy in focus

Housebuilding

Cur residential culdirg Businedss, chva, soa full

service housebuiider, Shoacguires  lang and

develops sites from design stage to Pral construction
Lo enaure e dedsery of guality workmansan Ellaag
stives to derver Bugh quality and  design-led

aspiraticnal biomes. comprising & s of o open

market and affordalle hornes, wath over 25 siles
urige: construction  Blvia 1 headguatierad  Hiear
Beaconshield with a gecgraphical  feotprnt in
Buckinghamesthire, Serkshire Hamnshire, Surrey and
West Sussex InJanuary 2023 we acguired Milrvood
Desarer Homes which has allowed expansion intc
the adjacent regions of Kent and East Sussex,
complementing Elvia's existing ioratiens

As part of o housebu ld ng dedsion. the Group
operates an the retirement lning sector Owr
retirerment vy business, Rangenyd  owns ard
cperates thiree retirement virlages ' daltshire, North

teaksbie and Gloucestersiire. iz curtently

comstrueting fao sites for future operations, and has
e~Chanaed on two ‘unhcr sites soread across the

countty, caath the intennon of developng these mn

the Tuturs

) VYIS (T
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Directors

The expenenced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
pusiness activites to  shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-retated and strategic skills

Paul Latham  + !
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks
Managerment dortify  assess and mianage nsks Ihe principal tisks that the Growgs are

assaciated with the Crolip’s busmess objeclves and  F o desonbed helow. along with the ms

cAposed e ae

er"\

actiong

trategy, Risks arnse from extomal sources, those | owe Lake Lo reduce tne petential rmipact of the 1k

which are mherert comniercial nsks i the market, @ We also incluge our assessment o

zirdd tom cperational nsks cuntarea witkin the @ lkelnood of the nsk has increased,

systerrs  ang  processes  empioyed  wathin the remanicd the sanie
business Overall nsk exposure 15 managed across 3
the Group thicugh the diversiication of activities,

both oy secter and geograchy

. - Energy Division

Risk Mitigations
v Bt i A+ 8 3 2 A SO, T 430 T TRk XA _1o P! 1255t B L BT A5 i U P 5
Market risk: o Conuacts are entered ntc whict fix the mcoms
part ot the ererny

o lonaeEnm Qo enrent
N place such as the Rene
(RO Y scheme Z8% of our erergy

froum R Svenue,

= oy o ses
aulecrierls are
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Tre enengy selior
sig vheant e
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are not achreved gne W0
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Change

PSR e s
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te D:,,-T-’:ﬂ'.\a‘. f-:" |“freasec' vtk ool Cy riskers who set furare reguraiory reguire et Mo och €
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Principal risks and uncertainties

fibre Division

Risk Mitigations Change

Market risk:
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk
Market risk:
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Group
Risk Mitigations Change

Market risk:
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Co rporate governance

Section 172 (1) statement

The Board consiacr ihal they have adhered 1o the
eremenls of secticn 172 of the Comparics At
2006 fthe "Act’), and liave, In good faith, acted n & i
way that would bo maost Tkely o promote ihe
success of the Group for the bensht of 1y memoers
as & whole having regard 1o all stakeholders and
matters set out noseciion 172016a 11 of the ACT
N the decsions taken cunrg e yem ended
20 June 2073

I the performance of its duty 1o promote the

success of the Group, the Board has regard to o
rumbet of matters, nciudng the Lkely consequence ;
of any decisicns in the leng wcrm, and listens to tne
views of the Groups key stakehelders o bunid trust
and ensure it futly understandags the potential impacts
of the decsions it makes, The Board fullls these !

auties partly by delegation to committees and the

Boards of subsidiary undertakings, who  opcrale

within & corporate governance framework actoss the
Group.

At every Board meeling a review of health and safety

across  the  group, finarcal  and  operational

performance, as well as legal and regulatory

complance, is undertaken The Board alse review

other areas over the course of the financial year

ncluding the Group's busingss strategy. key risks
stakeholder-related matters. diversity and incluswity,
environmental matters. corporate resporisibiity, and

governance, compliance and iegal matters :

Principal decisions
We define principal decisions taken by the Board as
those decisicons that are of a straiegw nate ana that
are signiicant o any of our key stakeholder groups
The Board considet that the following are examiples

cf princpal decions it made in e year endod 30
]

o

« Evaluatiig and deadirg to creéale a new strateqie

area of devclopment by expanding o the i

macote network rmarket and tecomng & Mobile

Yirtua Network Agoregator VMVNAT The Road
corsigered trigs cpportanity as well aluned and
complementary to the axsting Abre broadband
coerations, wch would help Lo deliver long-tenn

vAlue

The Grodp decided to turther expana its footprnnt

1 the  howscbuiiding cector Dy acgar ryg

Millwood  Cesigner Humes, a cormpany  with
values siritar of these of thva and the Group
Millwood 1s considered an aveard-w rrmg 1egional
homebuilder based n Kent cwhich bullt around
100 haomes a year. This follows the decson
made ir Ma, 2022 1o diversify the Group's asset
base and entermag into this new sector has been
well thougnt out wath iong-term growth in mnd
The Board consdered the opperiuty and bow
it asgred with our ohjectives ¢ maké a posibive
contnbutor to tne commurity and environment,
by bulding
snottage of properties

new homes 1o address the UK's

The Brard cecided to group

reorganisation which mvolved merging the four

caomrmendce  d

FTTF busimess ntc one new business, Fern Fbre

Tracing Limired FRTL will focus on bwo separate
strategles, while working  closely  together (1
wholesale stratecy. owrning the Ghre nhrastruciore
and onboarding multiple 15Fs in AllPoints Fibre
Netwarks and (2] developing our own ISP service
and brand. through Cuckoo Limited The Beard
evaluated the possible impact on staketiolders
including sharehclders and chserved that the new
structure would net change Mow the 2oard ano
Croup engage with sharehciders ar ther viewy of
the Group, but weuld be bengtaal in providing
Improved governance and cversight of the sector

as well as entancng tne ruture rospects
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Corporate governance

Business strategy

CUr busne s stialeny,
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Employees

ite Group's emnpioyees ae fundarmerial o the

T cof tne hirminess The Bireclors fulhl
her duts to employees B, entrusiing Seersght to

subsdiary ROAras

Vhe directors OF thE L usichary un

AKINGY TianiEge

the day 1o day, aegson rraking, engagement and
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Corporate governance

[he Board considers Ootopus rwvesintents Limited
te oe a key butmess partnes and supplicr wih
recponsibility 1o the

provisien  of - operatong

oversight financ al adunistration anag cempany

secrctanal services

Community and environment

The prowvsion and  operation of  suslanacle

frastructure s at the centre of e Grodp's strateqic
goals Thiough its business activities the Group

seeks o mawe 8 posibve  contributon to o the

commurity,  enwiranment  and  econormy O
renewable encrgy busiress s helpmg the Uk meet

its renevsable eneqgy targets, our hbre network vell

arve people noural communities acoess o ugh-
speed htoadbard, and cur retirement vilages creare
commiunites of seople in therr ater vears reducing
tae suamn on our heallbcare seraces We are also
culding new homes 1o address the UK's shortage o

propelies

Business conduct

A< Directors cur intention 1s to behave rosponsibly,
ansurirg rmananement operste the busiress with
Inteqrity and i accordance wath the tugh standards of
conguct and governance expecied of a business such
as ours Our ntenbion thiough our business strategy
(outlined on oaces 12 1o 115 Lo operate 1IN sectars and

WOt wIth orher busiresses that share our valuies

Business ethics and governance

The Board o responsble 'or ensunng that the

activites of the Croup and 1ts vanous DUsnesses are

conducted incompbance vt the law and apelboable
gowctrance  ang  regulatory  regimes and on
adherence wath prevan ng bosl practce o the
relecant ndustry Thes includes reviewing imternsl
controls, cnsurng that there 1S an approprate
i2alance of skills and expenence repmesenied on the
Board and cnsuring that the francar statements
aive a true and fair vew of the state of affans of the
Croup Further detall can be tound in the ststemert
of direciots responsibihties o page 38 Intheyear o
30 June 2025 no arcas of concern have peen

flagged m this regarg,

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

fhe Board's policy on emp.oyes, human nghts,
social and communty 1SSUEs, enviocnment poicy
and ant corruption and bricery matters 15 disCussed
M the Directors Feport o page 38 The Board
at vely promates a corporete culture that m based

on ethical values and behawicins
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Task force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD")
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the ervirormmaont

OF the Grode’s deasions thie Board considers the

energy drasion o B mest alnes o comate char

and correrzely most alke 1O take advantage of ¢

&l

Coiortumbies presorted byoa crarsnor to

rwst the Hoead consders the

Canfran econen,

mpact of clvate reated sy atioss sl oor
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ety

reoipe Ct
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re cvw A'C mariy, sith refrrence o tre
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Governance
Disclose the organisation’s governance around
climate-related risks and opportunities
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W Opp o turt
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rom lnmare-telsted risks and cpporurities
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he acquis.ton, construcuen and oue diigence The froups nere denson wil reman n growth :
process  nght through e the  on-gomg phase for the neat three i five years and I
managemont Trne Board have reviowed and : Maragernent eams considor how oo manage :
apeoroved ESO ontena speciiic to the Group's emissions snd ks while achicving ths apid !
Pusiness thal are consdored by commercal and giowth Dibre has s positive long-fenn impact on :
Mmanagement wams, mclud ng those operating the envircnment as once thie miastiuc e 15 |
n the fbre and haussbulding sectors The day- 3 place and cperating, s seen as a low carbon

to-day managemont and assessment of camate- echnology, A wel-constructed and operaed

< thorelor fbre connecton facilitates a recucticn i carbon

(]

related nsks  and  cppartarities

undertaxen by divisional managoment teams 2IMISSIONS N ihe

‘or qomie working and simart Sities

|

|

|

|

long-tenr dus o tne potential |

and reponted 1o the Board where necessary l
|

All of the above ensures the Board's oversight nothe  Group's hoasebulding divisicn, one

ard managerment of cimate-telated nsks and maor sk s ensuning shoert- and long erm

coportumties  includes  functions  established corstruction pracesses are managed o line

to provide good governance aver the Group's with potential cxposure to climate nsks, sucn ag

divisicns This enatles the Hoard and subsidiary flcoding The Group amms to nmiligate this sk,

companies to all be alancd on approach to as all develcoments within the Fousebulding

cumate relaicd nsks and opportunities seltor ncluding retirernent ving) have techmical :
fle.od risk sssessments carned out before land s i
Strategy :
. S : purchased
Disclose the actual and potential impacts of : .
climate-related risks and opportunities on the The Group s alse subgcct o regulatory risk !
organisation’s hiisinesses, strategy and financial : as all homes ard developments must satisty ’
planning where such information is material. ervronmental  planning  condtorns, wnich

May O Oasn regulallions . Froor

al Descnbe  the  climate-related  rsks and iy chang “" qulations are hduced 1o
. ) . : cLpport the HKs transition 1o net zero This
opgortanities the croansation has dentficd over ! ‘ .
: presents the Group with the opporturnsy

the <hort, medivm and leng-term

: oo above and beyond applicaible regulatory
Grer: the Group's long-term expenence in s standards for energy efnciency of new build
operating sectors ard sirong krks 10 its supp!\ers, homes and becormne a leader i ihis regard
particulary 1 the energy and housebuildng 5 nportant o the housecbuilding division to
seclots, the Groups well positiconed to overcemc : satisly  all crnvironmental planring  conditions
isks and take agvantage of opportunities ansing and seek hnancally wvigble opportutities 1o
from chmate change. Climate-refated nsks and excead rtegulatory standards The Group looks to
opportunties ars also at the core of the Group's dovelop stralegies aiound progressive adopt.on
strateqy and are discussed nght the way through of Moder Methods of Corsttuction MM
the busiress, from Board level 1o the imdeadual includinig treher frarmes solar nanels, alr source
sabsidiary campanes within the Groas Climate heat pumps ard electns vehice charging pomts
pays a part i shapmng ihe Groups long-tern wefiere appropnate YWoere poss bie, the Group

Lusiness, strategy and financial plann ng nves operational assels onlo renewaly e ene gy
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asscls 1o the hignest guali s stanoard and gomg 3
above and beyond tne relevant regulatory

MRMCy il
and

stanands by adopling
Lroup’s perating

T Croup s

nact the

THEINEEANCE 0L

fustner Tne cosl pgecions  are

Capturec at pomt of acgusiuon, and models are

updated regularly with diveraific aliorn of sapphers

and appropriate lewets of msurance ahtarmed @

The Cloup's IOIMass pants operate a diversified
supply cham of feedstooks and strategic stores to
ensure sufhaient fuel stores I case of faled fucl

SLpply from extreme weather condiions, there :

15 cortractua, recourse

abligaucns petween the
site and supplicrs for protechon aganst loss of |

reverues

Clmate-related nsks also have ar angact on

accounting estimates and Ldgements within the
financial statements The Group's batance sheel
mciudes a decommissioning prowsicn relaung
to the futtre onligation o return land on which
there are coorational biomass, wind and solar

farms to their onginal conditor, This accaunting

estinrate s determined to a significant aearee oy

the future dismarthng and

rostaration costs, as

veell a3 the treing of the dismantlerment, all of

which vl be impacted by, phvsical chimate nsks

ana raw matenale roguired for restoratior The

Cioup engages with a third party to porform the
asscssment of Custs 1o e mcunred, nciuoma an
assessimen of future chimate 1sks :

ence of the orgarisatons

consiceration different future

Descrhe the resl

strateqy takirg mte

clevgte scerarios ﬂcludm_J a 270 or loweer

sCenans

The Group senehts rom a quicker tansmor 1o a

lowwer-carhon coonoemy, such as ma 2" climate

Rathevay 12 broming globai te poratur s increase

to well belows 2700 wiulsl 1akrg the steps (o

eNsLTe we remain resihent to the risks associated

Wit sCenanos such as a 4"C patisay

Urder a1 500 Cthe weerld will expenence

a sl cart st

SCCaro

away from racimional fossl

fuels towaras renewable ¢Ic1gy  Souces as

unthes ana busmesses alilke imolement strong
decarbonisation plans teieach ret zerc Delvory
on these ambtans tequres a signiiicant mcreaze
1 thie pace ot capral agployment into renewable

crorge, all of which leads to g growth in the

Group's acgldasiien opportunities

The man ns< from a teneshagl transiton o

renewable energies 15 from competivon ard

the polonual ‘or price canmibatsation  (he
Group's strateqy 1s resiiert 1o this as they focus
seek first
form ot orice
o for

PIownde vas

ot bemng icaders in the market and

mowe advantages before any

ercsion can take place Increasing derman

the electrification of industries wll

ceployment apuorturiucs far renewanle assets,

weith ris.ng demand supporting the power price

for electrioiry, mimgating price canmialisation

Ihe: Group's nousebalding sector could also

Lenefit from sach a transition oy facng lower

costs on orstalation of solar panels or heat

pumos as rechnologes advarce and become

ChEaper 1o JCCess,

*

Londer o 4°C scenario, s assum

transition to a lowveer carbon cconomy

ed that the
has been
ncentives to corstruct and

cloweer and  the

aperate renewables have not been forthcoming
There is also tne increased physical nsk of more
extrome ntredaction

Whikst ths

weather  celaying  the
evwable asscts

roLup s revenue potertal, this

and operatican of ren

could immpact the G
would discourage cotmpetiton and the Gooup
slaced o take ovantage of any

The

vl oe el

cppertunity that arose Groups straegy
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Risk Management
Disclose how the organisation identifies, assesses,
and manages climate-related risks.

g Deronbe e orgamo s prodass SO agrhthang
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ANG GE5ECsIg Cngle - o
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lAted sk largey
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Metrics & Targets :
Disclose the metrics and targets used to assess :
and manage relevant climate-related risks and
opportunities where such information is material.
al [neclose the metngs used by the orgamsation
{0 assess climate-relaied | ke ard opportunibes
i hee wath cts atrategy and rick imanagement s

Process

A5 nrentioned under the Risk Management pillan, @

rmanagernant teams assess the relevant cimate-
telaled risks and opportimtucs of potental i

acauistions i selaton 1o set cntena The ESG

Hick Matrx used for our energy assets has
a towal score ©f 15 with a score of 9 or more
reguited 1o ndicate comptiance witl ESG pohcy
requirerTents

bl Dsclose scope 1 scope 2 and of appiopriae
scope & greenhouse gas (GHG! emissons and 1

the related risks :

The roup's locaton based scope 2, 2 and 7
ermissions e disclosed i the table bhelow In

accordance with SECR. the Group’s scope 3

emissiors nclude only those relatng te hasiness

travel :

Throughout the year we have contnued Lo
deplov caplal in expanding the Abre divisicn
rESLEUNG In an increase in emissions as this 1s &
function of giowih and headcount increase. This
15 highlighted by the Group's Scopc 2 emissions '
rising by 2% i FY24, caused by increased enercy

consurmptior,  despite the  overall emissiors

repuct on acroLs e busimess e cur fhre

companics are Tocuesd o) eng gua. of

Buelding a network, the |anmey along t

12 Wy

Just as unportant

Thie micrease in emissions 1o our ~ilre arvision
has becn rully offset by reductions i em sscns
froms cur teserve power sites which account for
S0% of reporicd crmisaions Our 76 reserve Doveer
sies provide vital cack Jp power 10 the Naucnal
Cnd mimes of peak demand, and ermissions are
expected o vary year on vear. dué to fluctuauons
i the eneragy generation reguired to balance the
grdd and supploment baselcad povear We have
thius seern a 2% reduction in cmussicons from
the prict yzar in our reserve power Sites alone, a
function of the sites beirg called upon with less
‘requency

The other primary driver of thie Greup s emissions
ate our bicmass plants, whick account for a
further 9% ot the rermaiming emissions  Our
biomass plarts use a mix of stiaw weaste wood
chips and other fuels of natural ongas, whch
also have te canacity too regencrate, to produce
electncity

The Group has therefore secon a headline
reduction n tannes of COz emtted i FYZS
compared to TY22 of 58%, prmacly driven by
the ower use of fuel n the reserve power and
biomass sites that the Group owns and operates,
as descied above, only shaghtly coffset by
increases N Fibre emissions

FY23 FY2z2
Emissions {Location Based) (tCO2e) (tCO2e) % Change
';‘:T[““"m"m““mw* — - s, j” e ”""m”‘:j:”f:“:m rs—— ””""“""“"
e Y 1877 '
Seope S PR 12 L9
Total N - 228,699 o 242,932 o (6%%)
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Aggregated Metrics

Tihe u T e o D

b, i

FYa23 Fyz2

% v - - .

% Change

Quality of data provided
The Zroup appomed Mimranry S0 ae Carnnon
GCCCUNting Sereirs I Hdepenactly caliuiate
CGHG
UK

Ernrciirental Feportina Guidelnes

SIS I

s Caeenhic e O

accordanee wrtt Ine CIOVEINTIENT S

neliidnryg

Carbon Report.

Gl
f a H 'C‘l

My the 1500

Shrearmiined Lre G

emissions Pave  been
14064 2072 sty
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The
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S
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Husiress, thaergy o mdashial S ateyy 185 5
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debntion:
GH

ST Ces Hinget

5 direct CINSMGS Dy the

o Goope 1Al
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. e sondrect GG crnessians from eore
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veed ot bz ass

o SronT S ChosmissIc s Nt CoLerad
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St

Aifferenr ao

total walues o

sl

e s bl

prrnare data as cohectzd be b Fyvhs o of

ronsuned

clectne ty i naiyral gas burnt

and kilometres travellod Sy Jdiforent moaes for
r

e gre ploatea to report that

7

COpas 35 2mizsises

e data colacied tor e TORD aind SECR
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1 by

ke

the crganisalion o
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Review of financial statements

The purpose of this report 15 ¢ provide aeditional
explanatcty informat.on on the fnarcial staterersts
[ measdnrg ouw performance the hinarcal roasures
that we Lse irclide those that have neen denved :
frorm Gur sononted results in oraer to eliminate taciors
that distort year-on-year compansons, These are
consideren ren GAAF financal measures

A rcconciliavon of these to the finarcal results can be
found I note 28 nf the nows 1w the financial i

statements :
The financial staterrents show asseis al amaortisea

cost, as such they do natiefiect the futlre value that
Wi eapect to denve fram these businesses To that
extent accountng porformance may differ matenally :

flom the share pr.ce and may not 1efiect changes in :
the full market value of asscls or businesses cwhed |
by the Group :

2023

[here were various changes o the opeatiunal assets

during thie vear nched ng the sale of Darinaton Pont,

a lsrge solar s e Auystrabia, ana Lhvie expand ng thei
%Oulh caslern footpmt vt the  auguismoen of
Milleesod Designer Hormes I March, o FOTR
nUsEesans welc successfully consolidated into one
ncvy Lusiness ‘ocusmg onwholecale strategy and Ol
owr 1SP orand Subsequent (o vear end, Dulaccs, a
large wand  laim 0 Westerm Austraha,  Decarne
operational  folowing  a  btwe vear  constiuchon
orocess, and was seld for @ profit of £22im 0 Cotehel
2025

T support contimued exparsicen, we built uz cash
rescryes at yeas end of F157m, which serve to flnd
the operstional needs oF our drasions

(restated) Movement
2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 %
. .L,.-,.,yu,,,,,uww.mww;;;;.;;.; M«rm?ll’ ;\;EM b e e - PP cwr.lw..a) -
-F“\ |2 - ;2 017 794,917 - - 155
L__L_t___ o (148, 767) - 55,888 204 o5 e
ler\-‘@ bk w_ Pt provisans, 439,5:2’:5 o 360,901 THEES o ‘_:_
156,919 256,415 ) )
Het ezt 1,001,265 793,169 R

Flet asnots 2,366,052

2,220,920

Financial performance
Tne Group has reported a loss hefore 1ax of £142m

ot the vear enaed 30 June 2022, which s s fall from
profit of £59m frestatediir the nror pear 1his s driven
DHMatly Gy excansion o our fibre sector, as we
cortinue to grovw Gl assels and operational base, a¢
detaled furher in this reporl Simdarle, oversll EBITDA

decteased by 58% to FB2im 120

mainly due to operatenal growth in our pewer

F195my, which s

Fangs Poine rTeresl tmn ae e S arsd ot AT

divisions. particulstly iibre and a niumnber of provasions

recognicrd  aganst  specifc property loans
Additonally. there ae two mstances of extracidinary
costs included in the financial statentents, vabich are
rot e4pected to ecoour 1) restructurnng Costs of
£13%m assocacd wilh the meerger of hire-to-thio-

frrertises Lugines onnparments costs of

E221m, asscciated with trading assets whicn were silo

subacouent 1o year end.
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Revcnue moreased by Lammte £ S00m

WTease Al al o

by ean duen b 3
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Aol e
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Group finance review

Sector performance

Energy

As economae activity ard globa demand cortinued
o reman hign threaghout the vear se feo did
wnclesale cneray prces, doven Ly misyenerts n
cornrcary  prees s oresulted i the Group
rmantaring streng rewenues from eneray deneration
at alevel sirmifa to 2027 301088 GUE CRCIQy S1CS, witn
revenues of £606m (2022 £250m;,

Our generaton cspadity 1emamned consistent year
or year, & hgre were 110 substantial dharges 1o our
energy aenerating assels However, produc ticn was
marg rally reduced due o Sncllerton, one of our
bicmass fired power plarts, suiferng sone months
of operational doewrntime following a gearbox fault

FY2023
Production

{(MWh)

Baresiriegss 991,873
Lardirl ss 225,680

et 405,802

Fesorve P

sl 569,063

Vil 876,374

P e

The asscoated msarance clam for eplacement

parts ard loss Of revene was settled w full
The nrpact was offset By the indrease i the average

price per it tor the division as & «whole as o

morcased o L1077 i friom £O75 Iy o the
price vean a movernent of 10%
Winile  total  opcraung costs cemained  mastly

consislent year-on-year at P37 12022 £32 490, the
Crougrecorded a £30MiNcrease in gas orocuremaent
costs for reserve power plans, drven by nflated gas
prices n the et halt of the vear Correspondingly
EBITEA also decreased by LES 2078
£258m1

A%t

FY2022
External
Availability

Gt ot

FY2022
Production
{MWh}

FY2023
External
Availability

IR AL

83.5%

Hdoaw

96.2% 37

Y

94.6% B
94.8%
92.6%

Total

2,068,792

3,099,650
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Group finance review

catnbuted E230m (2022,

Friemi o Group revenues for the

Aousel Uh\j\ﬂfl GRetalions o

vear reflecting the

~pact of ncieased revanug i1 Rangefo rd, aswell as
a full year «f BElivia operatinrs Eivia sold 132 unifs in
thie vearn and s performing int linge vath Badset while

Ratyetord inoreased s reverue by 45% Lo EZ29m

dsold 4
A change In acooi
Rangeford

g policy resulted nithe cost of

communal areas Bomng capilaised as

zssete (furnture, Axtures and equipmenit) and
site Previously, Lhese
griscd 1o Cost of Sales

eed vtk our

fireo :
arnattised over the lfe of the
costs were imriediately 1600

the P&L ihe trcaliment has Leen ag

audrors ano has not resutted mnoa prior year
rectatenient howover Rangerford  fixed  assets

mareascd Ly C15m m the cunent vear as aaresult,

Funding and liquidity
Our strateay vathin our renewvea

=

alile energy businesses
15 o secure

levels from manstreant barsks to enhance relums, At

[ong-term nnancng at censervative

vear end we had drawn L1160m of extermnal dent i
thus part of th
to be drawn

¢ Group. with a further E175m avallable

Trus approach enables us to acqgure businesses that
have stabie characienstics such as predictate cost
ase revenue stteams, government ©mcentives or
proven tecnnology and as such have lower retures
that without ieverage would be nsafficient for our
shareholders It also allows ug flexibility in financing
our businesses and managng cash flow: We believe
Ll

that faling to adopt this strategy wo have a

negative Impact or business returm ard shareholder

wa'UE over the lang-lerrn 807% of Surinterest payable
ne rot signincantly

The Croup

i fxed and thetefoe are

exposed (o current interest rate volatility,

applies nedge acoe

suntiig for interess «ate swaps

whilch means any changes i the ‘an value of the

swap 1@ recoarised noreserves ([Cash flow hicdgo
resevel wdth 1he ineffective portion of the hedge
recoanized irothe Foo Toe market value of the
saaps 1f recognised Gitbe balance shest as an assct

lratnlity whether the

favourable co

dopending or Swap s
J |

o

siicared te carrent rates

We
ercire that they are competinive and cptimised for
the
nianaged noan agile manner,

continualy reviow ingnaing arrangenrents G

needs of the busmess o cnsare Cash s
we mramtain flexble
finance facilities which can be drawn o repaid Lo
Specihcally  the

Group has access to a Revelang Credic Facility of

mieet mmediate busincss needs,

E290m, which s niterlmked to the net assets of cur

energy division The flexbility 1o diaw and repay

furds atshort notbce faclitstes offecive management

of shiort term cash fluctuations, which can oe driven

by seascnality of cperating waorking caprial

Looking ahead

AT the end of the financial year, we contnuo 1o

believe that e business is positioned well to fake
sdvantage of future giowth oppoOrtunitics across its
cive business arcas Eaergy and lencing operations

are wel established in the market and conunue te

make excellent mog-ess with robust performances

In the nev financial vear Prowvisons taken agans:
loans during the year in cur lendmng secler haye ring-
teniced challenges which are notirdicative of further

problems across other loans in the sector.

Deptoyvment intg fibre contnues 1 roll cut in line

with expectations, while growing its revernde and
operabonal base Sales actraty 10 our Paschuilding
divisicer temain strong against a challenging market

and arc reporting profts i line with budget
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Yo oot 1D generale SCNg wpsrany returns

prorr oo cstachehe s deasions for thins comem g sears,

oo

nooadanhion te the asbzmates outils

atvets il ot the wane e

st

Stoveind aus nbre and nousasundhng

matunt

PS Latham
Crectar

20 December 2007
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2023

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 20235

BT IO A IV N

For a sumrary of the Grogp's rosuds, refer to the

Sroup f nancs reyicve on page Al

The directars have ot recammerded paymrent of
a dwvidend (#0222 ENIL

bes oy

The directrrs of the Company whoe wee o office
durng the year and up to the date of signing the
financial statements wee

FS Latham
K wWilley
FG Rarlow
T Arthur

Sk Grant {agpomied 1 January 702240

SR L ST

Foool
Refer 1o note 23 i tae Notes ta the nrancal
stafements

Crin i = b e Famn o

Refer to the Strategic Report on page 8

oo dezboaanon s

Refor 1o the Strategic Report on page 12

e I T T 1) R TI

Refer tothe section 172 statermert on page 21

] H - |
I Folio ey

[ve Groap's objectives and pohaes on tnancial nsk
management including infermation on the exposure
of the Group to creait riske, hguicity nsks and market
qsks are set out 1 noate A1 to the iinandcal statomaents
Tre Croup's princical neks aro set out in the strategic
repert on page 17

R Ol ST | TP AT o R B

Ac permitted by sectior 214¢ (11 of the Cumpanies
Act 2006 the directors have clectod 1o disclose
irformancn required Lo be inthe directors report by
Schedule 70 of the  Large  ang Medium sized
Compames ang Groups (Accounts and Reports)

Regulatiors 2008 1in the strategic repar:

N I BERE | T ORI I A B [

Tre Board recagnses tnat a corporate cuture based
o sound ethical values ana behayouns 1§ an assct
The Croup endeavours 1O CONSUCTItS TLSINSss witn
mtegnly, N an ethical, professional end respons.ble
manmrer, customers,

treating  our  employces,

SApPlCrs and partners witn courtes, and respect

T DR R AT | AR Y R B R

Applications for employment by oisabled persons
are given full and fair congideration for all valandies,
particular aplitudes and
abalities Should a person become disabled whie

Paving regard to thenr

the Groups employment, every effeit 15 made W

retzirn them i employiment, aving  alternative

frainmng as necessary
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2023
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2023

and of the profit or logs of the Grous and Company
for that pencd In prepanng the Friagndial stalements,

the diectars are required Lo

o celect statane acconntng polcies and then apply

thesr conaistently,

« state  whether  apphcable  Uneed  Kargdom
Accounting Standards, comerising FRS 102 nave
been followed sutnect to any imatenal departures

dicclosed and explamed in the financial statenienis,

o make Judgemoents and accounting estimates that

are reasonable and prucent and

o prepare the hinanaizl slatements on tne going
concern basis unless it o napproprisle 1o presume

that the Group ard Company wili continue 1
bsimcss,

The directers are also responsble for sarequarding
the asscls of the Group anoe Caorrpany and hance [or
taking reascnable for the prevention and

stens

getect on of fraud and cther irreguianties

The directors are respensile for keeping adequate
accourtng records ihat are sufficiert 1o show and
explan the Group and Company's transachions and
disclose walh reasonabie accuracy at any time the
financ al positicn of the Group and Company and
eqagble thern to ensu e that the finanaal statements

comply with the Comparies Act 2006

Tre directors are responzible for the maintenance
and inteanty of the Company's webste Legislalion
n the Urnited Kingdom governing the preparation
and disservination of financial statements may differ

from legislaicn in cther jurscietors

,

Ac pormitled by the Arficies of Associahion, tne
directars nave the beneht of an o mdornmity whichg &
gualifyimg third party mdemnity provision as dehned
The

las T nanoial

fy soction 234 of e Companles Aot 200G

ndemnity was in force throughout the
vEal @G s currently noforce
| S SR R N

In the case of each director im ofc at the date the
Direcicts’ Reportis approved

« G far as the director s avare there s no relevant

aucht informaton ot which the Group and

Company's auditors are unaviare ard

» they have akern all the steps that taey oughtto have
laken as a dinector in order {0 make thermselyes
aware of any reevant audil infcrmaticn and to
establish that the Growp and Comaany’s auditors
are aware of that informat on.

This confirmatior s given and should be interpreted
M accordance with the provisions of section 418 of
the Comrpanies Act 2006

Ernegs & Young LLP baving Boon apoointed in 26022,

Rave indicated tneir v lingress to e reappomted for

another ftenn and wil be proposcd for re-

appontment i accordance with secticn A85 o the
Companies Act 2006

Thie Drectors report was approved by the Board of
Directors on 20 December 2073 and signed on its

Dehal® by

PS Latham
Lirecior
20 December 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinion
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SUAT bion romiprse cbe oup Statroent of
nceme, the Gronp and ~acrt @ Conclusions relating to going concern

ORI
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

INCONSISTENCIES O agpatent Matenal mmusstaterrents,
we are requned W determing whether trns gues nge
1 a matenal musstatement in the firanciat statements
themseives  of, basced an the work wee have
petforrmed, we concude that there 16 a matenal
msstawenient of the other information, we are

recured to report that racl

W hiave nothing to report in this regard

Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

I cur opin on, based on the wors undertaker in the
couree of the audn

« the information grven i the Strategic report and
the Drrectors report for the fnancal yvea 1or
whinch the fnancial stateiments are prepared 1
consistent with the financial staterments, and

« the Strawcoic report and Drectors repctt have
beer prepared in accordance wath applicatie legal

fequrerments

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

in the agnt of the knowledge and understanding of
the Croup ard the Parent Company and its
ervironment obtained n the course of the sudit, we
have not dentifica maenal msstatevients in the

Strateg.c repett or Directors répornt

We have nothimg to report in respect of the foliowing
matters 1N relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires US S repott W you I in our Opimon

« adequate scoountrg 1ecoras have Not been kept,
ur returas adeguate for our guoit haye N9t been

reccived from brancaes nel visted by us, or

« the Paent Company inarcal statenents are not
agreement weth e accountng records and

returns, or
rermaroration

« certain dscostres of Diecrors

specihed by law are not made, or

« ae bave rot recees sl the marmaton 30d

explanations wo reauire for our audit

Responsibitities of directors

A5 explained  more fully  no the
responsliltics stater-ent set cut o pades 38 and
29 the Directors ate responsble (or g proparation
of the finanual statements ard oo peng satshed
that they give a true ang fair vew, and for such

mnternal control as the Directors dotorine s
necessaly 10 cnable the preparaton of financial
statements that are free fron matenal misstaten ent,

whether due to fraud or crrcr,

Ir preparing the fingncial statements, the Dirccmors

are responsicle for assessing the Group's and the

Parermt Compary's aplity 1¢ contriie as a gomng
concern, disclosing, as apgliceb.e matrers related to
going conceln and usiong the gomg concern basis of
accodntrg unless the Cirectors ather ntend to
lguidate the Group or tne Parent Company o (G
cease operahons of have ne realistic allerrative bt

to Ao se

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

Our chjectives are (0 citan reasonable assurarice
about whether the firancial statements as a whole
are free from material m sstatermert whether due 1o
fradd or error. and to 1ssue an additor § report that
includes our epinion Reasonatle assurance s a fugh
leve! of assurance, but 1k net a guarantee that an
audt conducted in accordance wath 15AS (UKD wail
always detect a matenal misstate ment when it exists
Misstatements car anse froim frauc or erior and are
corsderad materalil incradually orinthie aogregate,
they couald reasonatzly be expected to nflucrce tho
cconomic decisions of users takén on the basis of
these financial statements
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what extent the audit
was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irreguantes mcludimg frand are restances of oot

~& ard regulatons desgr

o
o

Sompliarce

sturedaras o line sl ot respes it s Cutiried

yasicot ireculantes, noiadng fraao The

rmatesl N pement doe o

fratd s Pigncer thian the sk of o delechng one

e
re

g frooe erronr as frand mas inLg e deaborate

olernit

= are capabils o1 oetelting

to b an precedor

irreqular ues, ncluging fraud s detalea ke

The

orecent on and detechion of Tradn rests wath Botn

= igls recoonsblity o

e

ST

thean charged sath Govornmancs oF e entity ard
A AGEIT

odrapnroash ceas es follo e

s Ne obtared an derstand ey of b legal ans
requlator, framow ks hat are apphzabi o the
Grodp ana cetermines tat the mosl sigrafcant

relate toooperting s i ERS
102 and e Cpanes At 2U060
. urdereoos hicee Feor Trading Ler ted s

Otk vtk Trane
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ks 1y viakmg

engaines S maragernent those charaed wath
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Journats, targe or unusugl transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk <ntena based on our
understanding of the business, tested accountng
estmates for evidence of management bias,
enguiring of members of senior management and
those charged with governance regarding their
knowledge of any non-compliance or potantial

non-compliance  wath  laws  and  regulations
that could affect the financial staterments, and
inspecting  correspondence, it any. with the

relevant licensing or regulatory authorities,

A further description of our responsibiliues for the
sudit of the finan<ial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsihilities This description forms part
of our auditor's report

Use of our report

This report 15 mads solely o the Company's
rnembers. as a hody, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertahen so that we might aiata o
the company's members those matters we  are

reguired to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpase To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibitity o
anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Rt &%W

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory audtor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2023




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 JUNE 2023

Group protfit and loss account for the year ended 30 June 2023

frestated)
2023 JU22
st £000 £ 000
Turnover ' " 800,351 11830
NS {526,367} (386,008)
Grossprofit - - am3oes 325,822
N RIS R R S (379,077) [283126)
Operai.i;ngr;roﬁtl(léssr)i - 7(1_05,055<— 42‘&56%
ST LT Ao 4,968 3550
1 UL TTE LT T e et el 955 5,249
poa S B SRR 5 {1,045) 79,533
Fer mitvgrat i ° 713 130
e " (49,265) (25,270)
Profit/(loss) before taxation S - (148.767) L 888
B EEE NN HES [ - 17.208 (17.868)
Profit/(loss] for the financialyear - (131,559 38,020
Attributable to Fern (132,896) 44642
Minority interest 1,337 6e22)
- e (131,559) 38,070
T e T I St ST R BT R O L SV IO ERL

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2023

(restateda)
2023 2022
) ) £'000 E000
Profit/(loss) for the financial year e
bther compreh-ensive im;.-ome N S o N o
L et mah e b e e A e 1 19,599 71401
[ I S T L PR TS S TR I S S I T {9,093) 18,562
Other?:omprehen;ive inco;lé-fbr th_e year ) B 30,506 89963
Total comprehensive income for theyear  1oLes3 127983
Attributable to
» Owners of the parent {102,390) 124,605
« Non-controlling interests 1,337 [6.622)
o ' _r (101,053) 27985
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Group batance sheet as at 30 June 2023

frestated)
2022
£000
lee;assets e e i e e a e e v
It pnle fsseets I 528,874 557708
Tattile ainrte 2,035,554 1893430
I trseats 10 13,742 35452
- T 2,578,170 2486590
Current assets B o )
Sto ke v 263,616 184,479
Deptors Drdiuong ELEIm 2003 s 15k, E 825,068 623,876
duc after mone thsn oe v agr '
Cashoat bark ane e aard 1 156,919 256415
- - 1,245,603 1,064,770
Creditors: amounts failing due within one;;ér S (430,891) {258,264)
Net current assets o 814,712 806,506
Total assets less-current liabilities T 3,392,882 3.293.096
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than oneyear T (949,946) (993 325)
Provisions for liabilities - 17 (76,884) (78,851)
Net asrs;tisWii o D 7 2,366,052 2,220,920
Capital and reserves
Callee Lp shate o apatal 18 175,876 161.662
S pre i 37 et 608,085 364,882
AT P 1,613,899 1,635,569
Cask Al hedae esero 91,516 51,917
Frc Ftanicd 'C8s an cOLdy (110,530) 9,791
Total shareholders’ funds o 2,378,846 2223821
Mo g onmralling irteretty {12,794) (2,501
Capital employed o 2,366,052 2.220920

Note 26 details the prnor penod adjustments.

Thase conselidaied fnancial staterments on pages 44 o 9% were approved Dy the Hoard of directors on

20 Decermber 2023 ard are signed on then behaif by

PS Latham
Direcior
Reqgistered numher 125801636
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Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2023

2023 o0oe

£'000 £000
Fixed assets S . R
o - ; L 2,991,990 2539078
JR— " | - esisso i

Current assets

Creditor; amount; falling di:e within o"ne year 7 - 11 (700} (449)
Netc t as: o o T S 43,321 45861
Total assets less current liabilities 3,035,311 2,585,839
Net assets ' ' ' 3,035,311 2585850
Capital and reserves

RN TSI MRS N A 175,876 161,662
Shaane oo e Tl 608,085 364882
LA et 1,986,457 1986457
Pzt andd mss ot _ 264 893 72838

3,035,311 2585879

Net current assets

Total sihareholdersi' funds

Tre Compan, has elected © fake tne erempbion unasr secbon AGE of the Cormpamcs 2ot 2006 no o

e

Corepany proft and loss account The prafte: the araacial oencd dealt woihin the fraraiz

Trosert me

B
(2022 + 7%

SE A2 NG

statermorte of the Compar . was L
r -

Thess tnaraml staiements or pages 44w Yl warn aporoved byihe Boara of director s an 2o Decoribet 2023

and arc cgnied on ther b half by

PS Latham
Tirector

Pegatarca ey oo 220010206
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Group statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2023

Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
{restated) {restated) tunds
(restated)
£'000 E'000 E'000 £000 £000 E'000 E'000
145676 173138 144N 257 134,579 126,049 1884121 3721 1887842
4.505) 5.849 1344
149676 173118 1440257 119.484) 141,898 1885465 372 1889188
- - - - 44,642 44642 (6.622] 38020
- - 72401 - 71401 - 71401
- - - - 18,561 18.561 - 18,561
- - - 71401 18,961 89,962 - 89962
- - - 71401 63,203 134,604 16,622 127982
- - 195,312 - 195,312 - - -
11,986 191764 - - - 203750 203750
161662 364,882 1635569 51217 9,791 2,223,821 2901 2220920
Balance as at
1 July 2022 (restated) 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 51,917 9791 2,222,821 (2,901) 2,220,920
Profit for the
financial year - - - - {132,896) (111,226} 1337 {109,889)
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 39,599 - 39,599 - 39,599
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - (9,093) {9,093) - {9,093}
of subsidiaries
Other
comprehensive - - - 39,599 (9,093 30,506 - 30,506
income/(expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense} for - - - 39,599 (141,989) (102,350) 1,337 {101,053}

the year
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Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling  employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated}
{restated) (restated) funds
(restated)
£'300 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Non-controlling
interest arising _ - - - - - (11,230} (11,230}
on business 4 i
combination
Utilisation of merger _ _ {21.670) _ 21,670 _ _ _
reserve
Shares issued duting 14,214 243,203 - - - 257417 - 257417
the year
Solanceasat30Jdune 475,876 608,085 1,613,899 91,516  (110,530) 2,378,847  {12,794) 2,366,052
Note 26 astalle The oo Denod ad,ustmicrts

Company statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2023

Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
E'000 E£'000 £'000
Saw T ases s T s sas
e e - ’ - o ) 236741
(! et s - - 185 512 ) -
e T - - 195,512 236,741
o 11986 G764 - 203,750
Balance asat 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839
Profit for the financial year - - - 192,055 192,055
Utilisation of merger reserve - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - 192,055 192,055
Shares issued during the year 14,214 243,203 - - 257,417
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Ba!an:e—-as at 30 June 2023 175,876 608,085 1,986,457 264,853 3,035,311
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Group statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

[restated]
Plate 2023 2022
) £'000 _ £'000
Cash flows from operating activities T
Profrafie vo for e nar —.alwear 37 satah e e The S weric - of troes parety (132,896) 44,643
Adjustments for:
T o7 L el - (17.208) 17,868
ARt o gD a e ST lar irseee 0 (713) {1300
[Hterert coand cther 2 relar 2nanges £ 49,264 25270
Loes o disposal of subsidis 2 3 1,045 (29,532)
nec e o hssd sonc s naestmers {955) 15,249)
Zenert- Al n anad ropere 1t cntE g ble e asiels o 43,991 45,762
Depres Lot fancille freed sty ¢] 103,754 101.802
INoarmert of Aad aciels 21,670 -
Ser-cash sl Dorrs 3,961 5,040
Wioverr ents o den,atives and fore on exohanoge {19,149) {18044}
e ane o suLck (48,283) {19,829}
e mreand den e ase i deftors (160,903} 31,022
e ascdiderresse D Crachitors 105,863 {173,957)
Man conrsil n rTeres s 1= 1,337 16,622}
Tax recerczdfipaid 8,528 25853
;l;t cash generated from obérating activities (40.694) 41.897
Cash flov‘u;;f_r;m investing activitié; o B
Pure miaae of ~dbsidise aroeertaiongs Mot of cas b aoon o (19,176) (52377
Sale ol sunscuar, Lodenakil s ann Joet st 120,521 101,778
Thronase of tanaible assels (490.656) {322.446)
Sele b atanaitle aonets 90 (7.222)
Frechase o Ltested meestreone (65,335) (124,203}
Sale of anhisted nawestinents 1> 88,000 105,000
It terest recared 713 130
Net cash used in investing activitie; o _(565,843} (299,340)
Cash flows from financing activities—“
ok fromn hraroinrg 284,617 201,719
[~terect paid {186,453} (32.319)
Feoprasy P08 T s 11714 {49,264} (32,013}
Froceecte froee 65 55 e 15 257.417 203750
iet cash generated from financing activities - 206,317 241137
Net (decrease)/increase in cash anclica-sh equivalents o (99,496) 83694
Cockand cash oquivaleats al the b ang of e ves 11 256,415 172478
Frebanige cang cncash ard -n*w‘i salemte 724 245
Cash and cash équivalents at the end ;:f the year 11 156,919 256,415

MNote 26 details the pricr pernad adjustiments
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information
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Statement of compliance
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Statement of accounting policies

b1 reaclirg s conclusion the Ditectors bave reviewsod the financal impact of the nncertainty on e Group's

belance shest, pioht and loss and ¢ ashi flows vath speafic consideration gren 1o the fellowing

A roverse stress teet was performon on the ase case forecast (s ascertan whal sCsnan s weould result in  ske
o the Groups lguidity positon The test showed even ir an anlikely scenana of @ signiiicant redus ior of
reverue af 48%, the Group s avle tosustam s carrent cperatioral aosie ana meet all haoilines as they fall dae
fen at least a vear from the datc of sigring these inardial starements when atlismg the avalable facistics

wothun the Group

The Group has a number O* hnancng fadbibes that contam covenants requir g e Group 1o mdirtan
specifies hranca ratios and comply vath certaimn otber Anancial covenants These financal covenarts are
testedd at least annually and, at the date of this report, the Group s in compliance with all its Franca:
Covenants Stress tesis on reasonably plausible scenanos sucn as a significart reduction n EBITEBA of 84%

crer tirme nave beon used to ascess the covenant reguiremente for the at least the next twelve maonthe and all

covenants have been forecast to nemet eyuen under the stress test scenarn, inthe gong conaern per.od

At 30 June 20235, the Group had avalable cash of £157m ard headreom avalable of £175m includirg a
revolying creait facility of £290m Cebl of L217m s due to rnature in loss than one year, with the remamder
of L941m payable i more than one year The Group s faciliies, repayent dates ard undrawn amounts are
set out in Nole 16 [ cans and Borrowings

Koy accourtng udggement and estimates have bheen made with cons.deranor given ta the current economic
cutlock Key estmates mciude loan recoverability, valuation of worlamn progress, decommissioning provisions,
mpairment of goodwelt and investments business combinations and hedge accountng. Detals e set out
cn pages 5010 60

Baced on tne above assessment of current economic conditions and the impact on the Graups financs
positionr, hquidity and ananaal covenants, tne directors have concluded thal the Group ard e (_Zorm)am‘-,f s
adoquate rescurces to contmue N cperatoral existence for the nest 12 months Thus, the Unue 1o adopt
the goirig concern basis of acgour:tsr'q i prepating the annual imancial stawements

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 allows a gualibyirg entity certaim cisclosure cxempuions subject 1o certain conditicns, which have
been complied with, ncluding notficatncn of, and no chiection to the uze of exemptions by tie Company's
sharehclders

The Company has laken advantage of the foilowing ckemptions

frem prepanng a staterent of cash flows, on the basis that 1S a quanfying entity and the corsoldated
staternent of cash flows, included in these financal stalements, included the Camipary's cash flows

q trom tie ingacial nstrurrent disclosures, recured wnder FRS 102 paragraphs 11 3% to 11 484 and pqraurdpha

12 7610 32 29 as the intonmaticn s provided in the consolidated fingrcial statement discocsure

o from dec'osng tne Company key nanagement personnel compensaton, as reguires by FRS 102

Daragraph 337
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of conscolidation
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A has wentten 4 osut ophion
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ot
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[

the nor Conuadnyg rlerest § shae Of et Fsets, 15 recoarised g gnadeill Movemaris i the ssimated
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Foreign currency

i Functional and presentation currency

The Groap Mnancial Saterienis are prcsentad v pourd steding and rounacd o othusan

Tro 1At and cresetatior cutenos s ponnd dehing and recnded Lot asar dls

msary - funehe

ii. Transactions and balances
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnover

The Croup operales a numbet of Classes oF basiness Revenac s derred by thie following

e Ehergy
Turmover om the sa'e of electnicly gererated by sciar farins, woand gencraling assets, 1eserve povie Plants
and Biomass and Landfll siles s recegnised on an accruats bass in the pencd m which 1ts genoraled
Hevenue rom wng-tenn goventmient backed offtake agresmients, such as the Renewsabile CGhuagst on
Cortficzion UROCT soheme are accrued n the penod mowhich ol relates o Turnover from the sale of
farthser by Licimass and landill busmesses 1z recogmeed on phys-cal dhspatch

e Lendime
Turnaver represents arrangcmen: fees and interest on loans provided fo custormers, net of any value acded
tax Loam imterest 15 recogmised on an accruai basis in ine with contractual terms of the lgan agreeiment

Arrangemert fees are spréad over the lte of the loan ta which ey relale

« File
Turaover 1s recoanised at the fan value of the consideranunn reccived 101 ntermet connectivity dnd reated 1T
services plovided in ne normal course of busmess, and is shiown ret of VAT Turmaover s recognised Daseo
o lthe date the service 15 privvided.

« House bullding
Turnover s recognised ar legal romplelion of the sale of property, land and commercial spaces arnover
from heusing assoialion contracts s recognised by reference to the valug of work completed as a
proporuor of the total contract value Turnover for retirerient iving 1s recognised when the sigrificant nisks
and rewards ol cwerskip of retirement proportices hove passed to the buyer lon legeal completinn) the
amoant of revenue can be recognised reliatly. and it s probable that the cconenic benefity assoaated with
the trarsaction will flew to the entity

Employee henefits
The Group ptovices 3 rarge of berehts to employees, ncluding annual bonus arangemerts, pad holday
arrangerments and defined conrrbution pension plans,

i. Short-term benefits
Short-term berefts including heobday pay and ciher simmelar non-monetary beneits are recognised as an
expense in the pencd In which the servico s recewved,

ii. Defined contribution pension plan
Adefined contnbution pan is a pension plan urder waich the Croup pays fixed contnbzutions nta a separate
entity Once the contributions have teen paid the Group has no further payment  chliganons,

The cortabunons are recagnised as an expense when they are due Amaounts nct paid are shownin acoraals

i the balance shoct The assets of the poar are hield secarately frome tne Group roncependertly achienstered
funds
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iii. Share-based payments

selied srnare cased paymorleare rmsasered tiar caue althe balane e sncet date Ths Grounred

¢ Qs

G datalt ) atthe Latance sncet date baced wnibose “ar caines ik ngrto aoccunt the estimsted nuribe

dritz that ool actoal, cest ara the cunrort proporton o i cesting era Lharg e alue Sf s

bty are res OIS N TS Do staterenl

The Group nas ng equaly setfled ananoeren:

Finance costs

Finance cests are cherged 1o tbe proeit and woss a2 toaor the termy o the delbt oz ng the Glec e mieress

rncthod <o st the ancounr chiarges

Soab A Congtant rate on b Canying armisant

te

1A% G il puthie prosesds of e aeed mated Canra instiemenn god releas

gﬂ'\(
lose ccoul over the term OF the deit

Current and deferred tax

Ter srelogmsed in tho statsment o oo ng and retaned camnnos excet fear a Channge attnburatle o an

e ot Incomre and Crpense 1ecoqnIsca AEC Comprenens e oMo or e a0 e redogmised directly o

[

egUily 1S altc o caarised i other comoredic

S SINEINCTNE O Arecty, N eqUIly 1ESIE

T current ircome tax charge iy calculated o the 0355 of tax rates and aves that have been enacted o

sthsanter sracied by the basnce sheel aate e ccummes whare tre Compan; operates fnd aenoates

Imeorme

Lefered halances ire recognised i resped ol bt rotreveisna b,

tthat

sl ving difdrences traf baos ooana

e Bawariee sheet dale, e

» The rccogrnon b deferred tax agaeto s viited Wothie exlonr that o - probable that vey call pe recovered

against i re ersal of defersed tax habi tes O ¢t Tutlre texable proats and

o Ay ddtenea tax L Ldre ropeses 1 ong chon gl conditions for etarng assoratea lax allovearces

fhave been met

Lefered tax Laances are niot recoarsea 1 espact of permanen: differences exconl in r2spect af busiress

cortbinahons ohen defered e st Cormsed G the fferencel Beta ot e far w3 of 253048 StuTEn

and the futre e deaactons svalatis for them zira tne J Fermnces Lot ser the far waloes 20 Dalaltizs

aviores mnd the grocurt that o |l oe gusess o tax Jeferrad tzais deternrming d 4N ax 1acs s aa e

Fa.ecesr 2nacred rsubstant e enacted L) thig B arce sanet dats

Business combinations and goodwill

BaaMals COMs ranens are gTotnnted for v annt e ot e

sl i ke

crsderat orog ooy el o mcuna o s
A ERI N AR M

corrtol LI s stanes !
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Gooavsll receguised represents tho oxcess of the far value ard direcily atributable Losts of the purchiase

considetation over the tan valaes o e Croup's nterestin thodentfiabde net gssets labniities ard contrgert

hatrlites acquped

N acquistion, goodwall 5 allocatod 1o Cash-generating urils FOGLE D that are especten o Deneit hom
the comtinaion

Goodwalos anrottised over s exped ted usehl ie which s determred baserd o the estimated litespar of the
asscts acquired Where toe Group s unalie t© make a reliabye cstimate of vseful hfe, gooowillie avortised
over a pernos not escocding ten vears Coodvall is tevicwed ano assessed for mpainment indicators <noan

snnusl basis ard ary impanment & charged o the proit and loss

Tangible fixed assets
Tangble ixed assets are stated at cost less deprocation Depreaiation s provided at rates caiculated to wnte
oft the cost of fived assets, ess thor estimated residuzl value, over their expected useful ves Ueprecatian

comimences rom the date an asser s broughs inle service Lard anc a53e1s nthe course of constractior are

nat dopreciated Tanyible assets are depreciated cver then estimated vseful byes, as folle

Land and buldings JH o 4% .~:tra|g|*.t line

Powvier 5tat\r_>r‘|s:a- 7 5% G 5% straght U-r“g_-
mPtamt ang machinery 7 7 4% LG 3 straight ling -
E;w_o_rk 555618 a 4% 1o b -sr-ramht line

Assets inthe colrse of construction are stated at cost These assets are Nt depreciated until they arc avarable
for use

Mhere facrors, such as technslogical advancernent or changes in mear<et prce indicate that rcadual value or
useful lfe have changeo, tne resdual vaiue, usetul life or depreciation rate are amended prospectively to
reflect the new ¢ rocumstances The assets are tevieveed fonimpairment if the above factors nd.caie thal the

CarryIng anQdn may Le impared

Gairs ang losses on disposals are determined by companng the groceeds with the carvying amount and are
recoanised within profit or loss,

intangible assets

mtanaible as<ets are stated at cosl less accumulated amortisation and accumulsted nrpainment 0sses

Amortisation 1z calculated, usng the straight bre methcd, io alocate the deprecatle amaount of the asseis o

ther res.dual values over therr estimated usclul lives, as follows

Developrment nghts 25 an 0 years

Software 710 10 years

AMort saton expenses are included m administrative expenses Cevelopmenl aghts relate to planring consent
te buld a selar farm and a wind fare acoured on acguisition

where factors, suc as changes n market price 1mdicate tnat resicuzl value o dsetul lie hayve charged, the
residual value, usefnl e ar amort sat orrale are armended prospedtrely toreflect the new circumictancas
The assels are reuewsd for mparment # the abosve factors rdicate that the cary ng amaount may

e mpaned
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Leases
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Accrued income
Accrned ncome o leans s catrulated at the rate of interest set out i And oan contiadts Frnergy nuoimns 1L
acerded over the ;’Jenod i kichit has been generated

Deferred income
Deferred mcome 5 ecognised 1 accordance with foe lenms set out o the contact Deferred income s

released G the proht and loss account in tne penod o which it relates.

Financial instruments

The Group has chosen 1o adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 inrespect of inanaa, nstrumaerds

Financial assets

Gasc inancial assers, incluaineg trade and othet recevables and cash and tank balances are i tally recoanizec
at trarsactcon poce, unless the arrangemeni constitutes @ financmg transachon, where the ransacton 1s
measured at the present value of the fulure receipts discounted at a market rate of nterest Suah assels are
subseguently carmed al amortises cost usng the effective interest misthod.

At the end ol each reporting perod Ainancial assets measuted al amortised cost are assessed for oljeclve
evidence of imparrment :f an asset 1s impaired the impairment loss s the difference between the Carrying
amcunt and the present va:ue of the estimaled cash f ows discounted sl the asset's ongimal 2fective nterest
rate. The impairmient [ass s recognised in proit or 1035

Cther firarcial assels, rcluding myvestiments in eguity mstrumn which are not subsicharies, assodates or
ot ventures, are mitialy measured at far value, which s morma;ly the transaction price Such assets are
subsequently carned at far value and the changes i fan value arc recogrised in proht o oss, excepl that
nvestments in eguity Mstrumenis that are not publicly haded and whose fan values carnct be measured
retably are measwred at cost less raparment

Fimanceal assets are derecogniscd when (&l the contractual 1 ghts to the cash flows from the asset expire or
are cettled, or bl sukbalantally all the nsks and rowards of the Ganersiip Of tha asset are ransferred to another
party or (o control of the a%tet has been transferred te anotner parly who has the practcal ability to unisaterally
sell the gsset to art urnclated third party wthoul imposing adc \tmndt restnictions

Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabittes, mcluding trade and other payables, bank loans, loans from fellovs Group compzanies
ard preference shares, are infially 1ecoumses ab vansaction price, Lnless tho arrargement conshitufes a
finanzing transaction, where the delt msaument is measured at tha present value of the “utiie receints

discourted at g market rate of intcrest
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Coblmstiinmiens re subuequentl Carned al amortised TouT usmg he effec e nrovest rare metho ] Fees
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Key accounting judgements and estimates
The preparation o fnancal staterments o cormpaance with TRS 102 requires the nse of cormam crucal
socounung estirrates, 1toalso requires managemont o exderdise judgenient inoappying trie Company's

accounting pohcies  Fsumates and judgenenis ate continually evaated and are based on hisioncal

cxperence and other factars, includinig expectations ¢l idlne events that are belicvaa 1o b reasonacle Lncer

the crcumslarces The key estirmates and judgomrents 10 creparng these inardsl satemgiie are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)

Loans and advances to customers, rclucing associdled accrued ncome baanues, are revicwed forimpanmert
on a biannua: Basis In consigenng the need 1or a provision, managomaent determing ther nest estmiale of e
capecied future cash flovis ena case by case bass As this cstimate relies ona certar number of assumphorns
about futtae eventls winch may differ from actuzl oulcomres, noludng the porrower's aizlity to 1epzy Interast
and capila: due in future penods, this gives rise 1o Judgerment as e whether there s a shortfall betwecen the
carrying value and the far value of the gehtor Balance,

Managemenl note that prowsions aganst [oans and advances 15 a critical estimate snd have therefore
performed sensitivity analysis on tie provis.on. 11e results of the sensitivity analysis conclude that & change
of 4/ one per centin the arount provided against the estmated balance at r sk would have resatted in £3 €6m
lessimore expenditure bong charged to the ncome statencent dunrg the penad Sece ncte 13 for the carnyng
amount of the debtors and previsions at 50 June 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress {'WIP') (estimate)

Froperty dovelopmen: WIP s revievied {or impairment o a penodic basis, In considenng the necd for a
provision, managernert determine ther best estmate of e recoverable value Managerment engage an
experl exlorthial valuer o proside ey assurrplons about future events wihich may difer from actua cutcomes,

ncluding property valuations, rate of saies snd developmaont Costs

These estimalcs give nise taudaement as 1o whether there 5 a shortfall between the carryimg value and the
i = I by
fair vatee of the balance as at e 30 June 2023 Post yvear cnd, management have réeviewcd the assumphons
! ey

P and bave chserved no changes i performances

used to deterimine the value cf groperty agvaloprment W

that would impact the valuation as at the 30 June 2025 See note 12 for the carryng armoun: of the progerty
development WP

iil. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement}

Ihe Group owns one energy generating subsicdhary i Australia which bas entered into purchase price
agreemerts (PPAs) in 2019 and 2021 the PPAs include a contract for aifferences "CIDY whereby the
cubsidiares paydecene armcunts hon the customer based o the diferences between a ‘ed selling once
aact the actual pnce for electnciyy sold to the Australian ensrgy market The directors helieve the contract s
cutside the scope of TRS 102 sectior 12 as it s for the sale of 3 nor financial tem and the CHD s typecal for
cuch arrangements Therefore tis being accounted for urder FRS 102 section 73 as a revenus Contract with

variakle consideration, rather than revsluny the enure conlracty to far valué

iv. Business combinations (estimate)
The ot af a business combimation 1s the fair walue ot the conaderation gven, habiities nourred plus the

costs directly attnbutable 1o 1he busmess combrnation Far value of these combirations 1s a key estimate and

more detalks are provided on pages 54 1o BA
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)
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UK Solar [estimate):
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e an eshimateo Conl i dineantle
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ave wed a discoant rate of 4 2% o refleel the Ure novane of mune, and he nske cpeafic to the
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French Solar (judgment):
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vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
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Analysis of turnover by category
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Analysis of turnover by geography

i

ol b et et v

2023
E'000

lans it

2022
E£'000

DL ‘oo SPABCOOL B I 4 PR DTV S Al 550 T I S = VB g P S et 0 KT ) O, L A R S O e et 8 AR

Lred Finonom
Crrope

Fee=r of oo

669,180
127,287
3,884

603,911
84433
23486

800,351

711,830

Other income

2023
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2 R

Thus s wtated @ller Cigea ng e edinng:
2023 2022
7 ‘ £'000 tf)DO
Do ntaed e et e A 936 7913
S N RN TP RGN ER TR LR 103,754 161802
s e le © 21,670

R R T TR T LS B N S SRR TR N

53 45

AUl L Gl ant, T TR 1129 a81%9
Sanile 1 rrag e alins il e T 564 246
BT Ea T RO (R S PO F R T P SRR O BTN 507 482
PRSI O T e g 650 7772
Lprtal g Bk 190 12,677 13,783

2023 2022

. £°000 £000
et e o S T  eassy T Tgnans
ERPIITR 10,168 7041
Colee e 3,304 3233

108.029 05,706

Tre inouan proadss g aetrcs contibbon soremes for s ol ees b LK Tre ammnant recagnised &

am eapense for tae defimed cortr bonon scberis 1n snoan n the tanle ass e
The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2023 2022
Number Number ‘
B A e e 1,os7w N —
851 631
5 3

1,553 1666

Pei oo, Fadone oo corpin e ko g Drector, e g tee pencd sraaa 20 Gone p0r 3202 T
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AL on e

2022
‘ o ) ) o ) f”UQO
Frovcalimar s 176

Durnig the year ne pensan campbuliors were made niespect of the diredions (2022 none

The Group has no other key maragement 2022 rionet

5 L[ e ’;’l'l'l_ TR

A numper of subzicianes of the Groug operate a cash-settied LTIP t¢ gualfying employess, whoresy
emplovecs render cervices 11 exclange for cash, the amaount of which s determined by ieference o the
valuation of the underlying subsidiary: The fair value of e liatkzility for the awards mnade s measured at cach
reporting aate ard at the settlement date The fair value s recogrised over the vesung pericd. The amount of
CRPENSe recounised takes INte accourt the best avallable estirmate of the nurmber of urits expected to ves:
under the service and performance conditons underlying each award granted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2023 2022

Number of Number of

awards awards

U Sl Ancinn Lalance 3,678,314 1,914,751
Miseiment dunn g 11 cear (122,417} 1763563
Closing outstanding balance 3,557.897 26/83514

The total charge for the year was F3961,00012022 L3123 0001 and at the 40 Junc 2023 there was a liability
of £5.464 000 included within creditors greater thar one vear (2022° £2,407.000!

6 et

Interest receivable and similarincome 2023 2022
) £'000 Fo00

lterest o opark P ’ 713 130
Interest payable and similar expenses 2023 2022
(restated)

o N o 7 £'000 ~Eooo
Tl..:,:...drnw,..’,,”m;* “”..,.,.W, e < AT AT o P RS . e 1 TR 18 . T g 53.907
Srnc it on ofissue st cev b Do wangs 2,943 2,598
Drrsfity] s anas st ioanoebinstiments o {1,235}

49,265 25.270
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7

a} Analysis of charge in year

Current tax:

NN KRS TR PRREE I IS ;,‘-,”:t.';l.\ e T

L R B R e N O

2023

(99)
623
2,089

£°000

{restated]

2022
£ 000

(257
470
5641

2,613

10,114

Deferred tax:

S e e e el b s ey oy

e O R L R T P R i

(25,748}
7,285
(1,358}

6,227
(3.741)
5,268

[ S Ll et I

Tax charge on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

(19,821)
(17.208)

7.754

17868

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

Thieae assecced for the e ey

[AR

/0 7 1940 The differercos are

ot e e WY AT e e e . P

Proﬁtl(lossi before tax

R N5 N PP LR AT R R

corponatior e e L e S5 T b

Total tax charge for the year

=eplainied boelo

2023
£000

e e L L T e oS A 1 e £ 1 e ¢ e TS 3

(148,767)
{30,497)

12,874
(5,407)
{892}
7,896
(1,182}
(17,208)

2 o022 bigaerrthar tae stanosicdhate of corporation tae i the LR Gf 207

lrestated)

2022

¢} Factors that may affect future tax charge

e eance Sor AR ceacied 0 10 dune o021 incenaiad the o
e o e
i 10
:




&5 S

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

B o e

Software Goodwill Development Total
(restated) rights

Group ‘ £000 £000 £000 £000
é::tmm e et e i e b SR bt s < 505 e A ST 1 i3 it T 9 S s KT ORI 5
ST duly e 3,089 743,456 15,314 761,859
Acquired e agh b o 6,612 6.565 - 11,810
conbical Sy e b 2T
Lot ors 2.047 14105 - 17.51%
DIposale - (3439 {10,216} {13,655}
Lagrporeir al - - - -
AU30 June 2023 11,748 760,687 5,098 777,533
Accumulated amorﬁsation -
ALy A2 119 202,475 1,557 204,151
Lusnosals (22) - (1.442) (1,464}
[ zes o translation - 1,981 - 1,981
IFgarment - G36 - 936
Charge ror the vea 1657 41,263 135 43,055
At30 June2023 1,754 246,655 250 248,659
Net book value S
At 30 June 2023 9,994 514,032 4,848 528,874
AUAG e TRE 2970 540,981 13757 557708

The gan on wanslatcn of foreign currency deromnated goodwill s recognised 1w othior comprehensive
mcome. Amortsation of goodwill 1s charged to administration costs

Detals of the subsichanes acquired durirg the year ended 30 June 2023 can be found in note 27

During the year the Group disposed of a solar fanm n Austraha Development 1ights reiating ta this sale were
£10.2m with accumulated amortisation of £1.4m,

Irmpairmerit of £09m has been recognised on goodwll (2022 £7%m)

0

NO assets have been pledged as secunty for tabilities at year end (2022 nonel

The Company had no intangible assets at 30 June 7023 (2022 nonel
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¢

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction

£000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £000

Sl LTI 12,533 315071 LULESL 118.68E 310170 2504371
[ S 8458 1783 48,388 1

[F)

2061 352053 548,743

- - 485 - - 469

[ O - - 13,2921 - 12.294)
T e - “33 (393571 200331 7E.296) [92,189)
o e - - 1243 366 {1.74%) 1031 (#45.218)

At 30 June 2023 18,991 320,987 1,508,751 275,329 588,824 2,712,882

A;:curﬁula;éd dep;eciation
bl 4,563 107189 494747 4454 - 610,941
KESRREINCET 1883 15.604 2130 14137 - 103,754
- 18 {15.950; - - 115.932)

125,827) 115,750} 247 - (41130}
- 210620 - 21,020

s . - 1.325) - - {1.325)
At30 June2023 1,669 122,811 533,847 19,001 - 677,328
Netbookvalue

At 30 June 2023 17,322 198,176 974,904 256,328 588,824 2,035,554

211,887 125110% 114.269 31017 1893430

R 5,940

sapitalised tnarce costs diredtly sutnnutable (o bnmgng he assot o use

= el Cany g arnount of

srels held ando inance lases iraluced mplarn ~a-hinere Astes ard Attngs
p )

E1 G240 for

L Tt T R ol fati L L] S I N I DR S

s Eenl PGP 51 FES 000 inclaed ety

Tre Tomcany had ne tangble assers gt 30 June 202520220 ninne
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101 =iy
Unlisted
investments Total
Growp .. | . £000 ..E000
Ew;;\::nm;lw:;;l;?ok“v; lu .; e e et e . v £ < BB £ S N o R
ATy A 3h452 35452
Foh s 66,290 66,290
[RESTISTREIS (88,000} (88,000)
At 30 June 2023 ) i 13.742 13,742
A dune 202 36452 35452
Subsidiary

undertakings Total
Company ] _ o i £'000 £'000
- A P »
A ZLIune 2022 2,539,978 2,536,978
AJuticns 452 012 452,012
N pasals - -
At30 June 2023 - 2,991,990 2,991,990
Accumulated ill;;é-ai;r{;ents
MOED e P05
Fororsa b Inpariens - -
Impainm=nts - -
At 30 June 2023 - -
Net book value S
At 30 June 2023 2,991,990 2,991,990
P A i 2022 2539978 2539978

Detals of relaled undertakings are shown in note 29,

Unlisted investments comprise the Group's holding of the members capital of Terido LLP. a lending businass,
and s shareholdma in Bracken Tradirkg Limted Forn co-founded Terido LLF in Qctober 2012 with the

rtention of conducting a proporton of 48 futdre trade throJah the partnership, Addinons and dispesas of
Jap 8] [

unbsied investrnents relate to investments and divestments ir lendo LU inune with Fern's cash requiremaents

and o utihse surplus funds Fern has 2 siall sharchoid rgoin Bracken Trading Limited fram time to tme, ~erm's
rvestment i Bracker Trading Linmited at 30 June 2023 was FNIL S0 June 2022 Inilh The directors do nct

conaider Terido LI P or Bracken Tradimng Limited to be sabsidarny andertaknge of Fern Trading Limitedd
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T - C

s

CTavamclades cosh ninara and depasts retayabile ondemand

Fesuwicter casnrepreserts ¢ a2 for webac brthe Gronp does gt haes e msdigte ard direct a22ess o for vtk

requlat o I=Qal reguiremerts tech T Re ase of The Cash

Group
2023 2022
- E'000 - [000

ok :;T e e b 'HVL'J ‘ l R 104,7-44 195823
= o aen 52,175 60,582

Cash at bank and in hand 156,919 256,415

~estnctes cashis compneed of ENG belon Faorepa ard 052 775, 231 of cash beld nosabaidianes cath be-armual
distabiution wendomas

The
£ 42 0

Sarepary Nad g cash baance of ET0AT8 500 oy ar 30 June JUZT none o el was e stced 12022

12

Group
2023 2022
EZOOO & £'000

i e ‘ T ' 1978 158
27,132 26023
234,506 156,918
263,616 184479

Tre armicunt of 2000

Incinded i the fuel <pare cans ann corsanshles clask vaue s a ooovesn of D378 000 1o unwsable fue
sk N2 B

fob sanant, ana st

B L VL I T ST TS
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13 -1

Group Company
2023 2027 2023 2027
{restated)
_ ‘ £000 £000 £'000 £ 00
Amounts falling due after one year T
COAns A e dearien b istboir e 151,927 137662 - -
irepa,enla 18,714 - - -
Amounts falling due within one year }

OIS T RTINS e st e 297,609 223238 -
fiase mentas 26,075 42050 14 382
Areounts maeon by re sterd varnes e A0 - - 21,227 32,950
Cnier deliors 21,338 20197 494 3843
Ot ST TR P 3,475 - 4,624 2527
Der vaties fmare al nisiramnents &oie 20 108,164 55126 -
Foespraylr oale 200 A7 rLed roogme 189,146 145602 184 176
Aqnmte Ml for jessle 18,620 - - -
" 825,068 623,576 26,543 59,858

| cars and advances to customers are stated nct ot provisons of £34.9472 000 (2022 £13.874 000
Frepayments and accrusd incamc are slated net of provisions of E200,42/000 (2022 £7739.000)

Assets bield for resale are norelation to One Bealtboare where targ:ble fized ascets have neer reclassihied 10
rient assets as at 20 Jure 2023

Mo nterest 1< charged or amounts owed by group unaertaknas, as the cutstanding valances are ansecured
and repayable on denand (2022 nonel

Ncte 26 detaills the pricy pened adjustments

Wi
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14

Group Company
2022
2023 itestated 2023 2022
£000 £:000 7 £'000 )
50,183 58,004 1 76
- 10,273 - -
T I IR oY 52,303 24,362 -

RN TIRE T A R T T 29,844 2428 - -
R LT A o LT R I 81,419 /5465 699 273
430,891 258,264 700 449

Group
2023 2022
Amounts falling due betwegn one and five years N o ) £000 E'GDO
Pt e e e T T T T o080 ses070)
ST R RO I 2,052 5,899
Thee e 2,274 5.264

704,846 395233

Group
2023 2022
Amoantrsrfalrlingrdure after more than five years . E'QOO o E'_GOO
Tronte costn e L 4,578 24676
o 245,100 598,007

oA el e e ey 949,946 943 325

The Corpany Fas i cradeir cne nh arustortban ore sar

Sraveacts soedtoeaterd marvies arc uncetured nons Terest DeIr g 3 rOLa!

o derar i
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16 L. -0 o vl

2023 2022

Group 7 ) ) ] - £'000 E000
e 7 S
Dl Lt s DN o P pnars 700,520 383070
D= rrene 1har N etaas 240,522 573416
1,158,184 1044218

The Company had no bank loars at 30 June 2025

The bark loans are secired against assets of the Group walh each loan 23 held by the subsichars shosen belowy

2023 2022
, Interest rate £000 £'000
Yorers Loerzy Lonied & month SONIA plus 1.60% 411,016 479,138
Leddar Facigy anet rrastae Live Linited SONIA plus 2 OO/G ‘+ 07% 125,000 -
non-utilisation fee
. 3 month EURIBOR plus
Bls rrengy < i 1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70% 26,509 30548
Clos Eretsy 3 R0 TN 1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR 55,553 56,079
Lo neta ) By Lt & month SONIA plus 1.50% 281,938 284 348
Datarngion Feors selar Fanm Pre Lrited 6.49% fswap rate Ouf 4 59/0. " - 114,026
1.9% margin)
FAote e neeabile Dot gy UF Lomited & month SONIA plus 2 5% 72,717 85,718
Saacca yd Haldel DT e 1.7% + BBSY 156,563 31614
Mg Flomes nyed 5% 4 SONIA + 2'56 non- 18,749 12,306
utilisation fee
Bl [Dosigres Tl vy Linited 3% + SONIA -}‘1.2‘4 non- 10,000 -
utilisation fee
Zener fssel Mandgernent 1o Fixed rate 2 5% 39 43
1,158,184 1,044,218

SONIA replaced LIBOR as the effective interbsnk lending rate system from Ldanuary 2022 The rate change

resulted 11 no cotnimerciat impact 1o the business

Finance leases

The future minmum finance l23se paymoents are as followe.
2023 2027
£'000 £000
T,.,_. - ‘TT, S I
Por bt slor Dastors  =ar 1,195 2428
Vot than s cear ancd potlab s bar e peard 6,594 5899
Palot thom e e edre 79,141 76461
[eatgl ggrems e et e 86,930 84,788
_rmse Tmane e o har e (50,457) (51,785
Carrying amount of the liability 36,473 33003

Ine hrance leases primanly relate o a leased buiicing and heatthcare sgquinment Ther gre no contrgent
-ctal, renowal or purchase opticr clauses Rents payable increase by local inflat on Fnance lcascs are

cecured aganst e leasod asceis

Tre Compary had ne finance leases at 30 June 2023
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Decommissioning
provision Deferred tax Totat
Group 7 7 ) £f000 E'00C £000

AUTndy s el 41,023 37,828 78,851
Syl d e pr oAt s es 318 (27,1086} 126 787

R T e N UL ST - 21,363 21,563

[T TR SR A% BB eINE IR o (4612} - 4.612;
IS R B R FE ST I ¥/ BN AR T4 - 7358 7358
Jreevanigo o s 730 - 730
Lo larslzloe o _ (19) - 15}

At 30 June 2023 37,441 39,443 76,884

Tre decsrurisioning provisicn 1S Reld o coyer futlre bl gations Wrettnr lang on whic b there e opetatonal

wind biemass and solar farmie, toth er anginal condition The ancounts are rot expectad o e uttised for n

[he Company Pao no postses at 30 June 20253

18 o e e

The Groun and Jompary have the ol ovong share capital

Group 2023 2022
£'000 £Goo

Allotted, called-up and fully paic}

'
e

175,876 161662

Company 2023 2022
£000 £000

B LE v UV N T RER

Allotted, calted-up and fully paid

R ATTUL BM R OIS Tt TN S A e B L SR ATATI T T & T sk wdBue cwa mem s o e s o

SN - e
: 11 o 175,876 161662

YA Codimary chates of 2D 10 Al fOr an
“thie chme s i cdney e coon Lbsl

thim ab ares TYOE premiLm of
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Ir share capital ansmag both before and atter the estructute are reported as movermenis n e Groun <hare

Capital

Cunrig the year the Company issued 142 155908 (2022 119,866, /%4 crdinary shates of LU0 each for 2n
agaregate nom nal valie of L34, 214000 12072 F£11.098 0000 OF ne shares ssued dunng the vear 1otal
corsiderst.on of £257417.000 2022 1205 /S0 0001 w

FAA5 203000 2022 £191.764 Q000 Darng the year the Group purchased mil (2022 aili of its o ordinary

s paid for the shares, grang nsc 1o a premium of

sharcs of Zrul each with an aggregate nominal value of Ll (2022 Ll Total consderaton of =nil 12022 il

was paid for the sharcs, gvang nse toa prermium of Enil (2022 fol

There s a single class of ordimary shares There are na restncticns on she distnbation of dradends and the
repayrment of capital

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow Pedge teserve 1s used fo record tansacuans ansing from the Grou's cash o
hedgimg arrangements

Merger reserve
The mergel reserve arses frorm the difference beltveeen the fair value of the skares issues and the book values
of the subsidianes acguured

b e I A (TP S R
[he movement in non-controlling irterests was as follows

Group

Note 2023 2022
Group £000 £000

MR R LI o e e I e RS AR L T T AL S BT AL Al R AL PO e Y M Wniend <% R e g 1

{2,901) 3721

[

EVT ly D00

Sal of subeadia e Lrdestatance andasod s e

27 (11,231) -

2t oer-cnrtrolling votce

Total ¢ creprehersive loss stmbatable e 1,337 6,622}

Rl o1 N To I At AT )

At 30 Jurnie <CF 4 {12,795) {2.901)
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20 [ I-
Agal 30 Junie 2027 tnrre weete 70 contirGer Les seross e Troup ot Curnpanry

2 -

[
TRANg oMo, s OF francial assats A hao 1mes

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
E£'000 E£'000 £'000 £000

G My S T R MY S e A U e BRSP4 ek T 3

Group

Carrying amount of financial assets
I S TS TR YT Sl Y EVUPRUTERNS IS S T LS I I 508,042 423150 509 4235
SRS a b S T T e e RO vy 105,691 54409 - -

PAecc el 2y TETae . 1,265,555 1,126,163 1 76

Sole 26 details the nnor pencd adjustments
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Derivative financial instruments
The Grotgys frandal dok management seeks o uriense the expostre W rrarkel nek, credit nsk, ooty ard

cash flow nisk, and energy market nisk

a) Market risk

Energy market risk

The crorgy secion 1s expenerang wgn Icant turoutence and there s a nsk that forecast levals ofircome are
not achened due to changes i wholesale energy prices off-take contracts or gover irent subsides Charges
N Covernrmiertt pohcy, or regulator intervention may result in reduced moomé stréams within the arcup due

to additional levies.

Currency risk

e Groue cresents ks conschdated fimanc al statements 0 sterling and conducts cusiress N a nuimber of
otner currencies, puncpally Curc and Austalan doliar, Consequently. the Group 1 exposea o forcign
exchange rnisk due (o exchange rate maovernants which affect the Group's transacl onal expensas ane the

transiation of earmng and net assels of 1ts non-stering operalions

Transactional exposures

Transactional exposures arnse from adnunistiative and other e:0cnsc in curerces other than the Group's
presentational currency (Stetingl The Group enters in e forvard foreign exchange contracls and foreign
cxchange swaps to mihigate the cxchange rate nsk for certarn foroign currercy payables and receipts The
forward currency contracts and swaps are measured at farr valus, which s detenmined wusing valuation
techrigues that utilise observable nputs Tne key inputs ased i vaung the derivatives are the forward

exchanyge rates for GBP AUD and GRF EUR O 20 June 2023 the far value of the feroign currency contracts
was an asset of bl 12022 il and a lability of Sl 2022 Ll

Translational exposures

Balance sheet trarslational exposures arise on consoldation on the retranslation of the Saiance sheet of non
sterling operations into sterling, the Group s presentaucnal currency The leve, of exposure s revicwed Oy
rmansgement and the potential foreign exchange movement s within an acceplabic level of nek and therefore,

typically, the Group's policy 10 noL Lo actively hedge these exposures

Interest rate risk

[he Group has exposure 10 fluciuations i ointerest rates on is horrowings Where the Group enters into
DoTTCwang arrangements vath floating rate mierest, a swap arrangement 1s entered into t¢ hx  peruon of the
nterest i order to mitigate agamst an rcrease ininterest rates The parion of interest 1o be fxed s assessed
N a case by case bask. Managoment car elect whelhel to Medge account “or these arrangsiments on an
individual transacticn hasis and have elected to anely nedge accounting for interest rate swaps The swaps a1
based on a principat amount of the loan facility and rmsture on the same cate. On 30 Jure 2072 the
Calstanding interest rate swaps have 3 maturity in excess of hve years and the fair value 15 1 an asset cosibian

of 2105 691.0002022 hahilty of £54,409 000

Price risk

“he Group s a short- to mediwm-torm lender to the residential property varket To tne extent thal there s
detenoranon inthe ievel of Nouse prces that affects ke propertes that the Group's loans are secured against,
thers 15 a nsk that the Group imay not recoup it full exposure Thes s miligated by the short-fermt nature of the

loans and the consenatye level ol loan to value tnat tbo Group s prepared to lend at.
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h) Credit risk

Customcr credi rekos rnpigaed through thie TaSun s Croms oo st e8I ArS 0 plare to ensure that

CUE CUSTMETS NaL G e aporsonate oot hstor s and are mloatorned o

AR RS [l ha e BEets LN 13

c) Liquidity risk

Lty nss &re narad 20 B, @ng ning 1At suit Cient cast S ovalame 1o ina corineeri and fultee operatcne

Frigundhty rsk goses on Bank loane in place across the Group ard s roanaced thiroagh o arelnl moritoning of
= } B c ¢

CowENarts ana Lenshie ensls of o TS O 3 CNOEWeET BASs A EIReas Our 1ES LG 15 16 el

v bhaook Cash fioes sk e

frroughcat the vear as el as interest and redempuons G ocur shorr-term |6s

Manadea nrough ngeirg Caeh hene Forec aslind 1 Crsurs receipls are safficrent o meet llan hhes as ey 131

Al

22

At the vest end the uroup red capital commitments as fallows

2023 2022
Group , e EFooo ~EU0C

At e s cul e 118,85% 347754
Loodrgern b aies s g liars wbe se 197,320 173,600

Comtran bR T L

At 30 e the Trone had 1ot future e iues !

2o paymen: Jbds aon-carccllacle operating leases

as falloneys

2023 PAv

Land and Other tand and Cther
buildings buldings

£000 £'000 £000 £000

e e - o T e N L e B pmths st ire i e AT ¢ AT DA WORIL x5 T e [ T A

S it e 10,350 781 8,707 66l
Laboep te gt comm e e e e e 34,353 709 21627 726

et 98,367 - 95664 -
143,075 1,490 1359

The Gronp nand re 2the off Dalar e s et zrangerrans

TLrAKIN The ererbie T n

Zunthe) 502 s3nefaa o

Tradnag Leas

PRI B I T ol B R R AL TR ol I B A= A I (T
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23 s Lt e ey

124 Qctoher 2022 Fern Traumno Gevelepment Limutec U TOLT @ subsidiary of the Grosp staoessiully scld
Dulacca BeldCo Pry Lt and its sunsidianes b Gatopus Austighia fMaster Trust & pront of L22im a8 maae or
the sale

Ity Oetener 2023 ine Group taisen F2T7m from exsing shargholders thireugh an offer to sabsonbe for furiher
sharc

24 10 pod Lot (TR F

Incler FRS 102 33
members of a Group, provided that any subsidiary whichos a party 1o the ransaction s wha ly owres Sy suc

14 cisclosures need not oe aven of lransacticons entered nto betwoesn two o more

a memer

Giuring the year, fees ¢ f £90,450.000 (2022 £77,924.000) were charged to the Group oy OCtopus Investmsnts
Linutec, arelated party dus to is sigrihcant influence o the ertity Gotopus Investrierts Linited was
recharged leqal and professional fees tolslling £75% 000 (20?? F10 LS5 by the Group. At the year end, an
amrount of BRI 2022 £5 500) was outstanding which oo ncluded in trade creditors

fhe Gfoup 5 oentitlea w g proft share as a resull of its investment in Tendo LLP a related party due € key

managerment persornclin commaon In 2073 a share of profit equalto £555,800 2027 £2.242.000) has hea—'w
recoan sed by the Croup. At the year and, the Group has an irterest in the membar s capital of £13,742.0

(2077 F35 452,000 ang accrued income due of £2 812000 (2022 £5,276.000]

The Group engages 1 lending aclvities whnch include oalances provided to related partes. Regarding entities

Wit key management personnel in commorn, oang of £65,070,000 12022 £63.490.0008 acorued moome of
E28,806 000 2022 £12785.0001 and de'crrea income of FRIL 2027 ENilE were outstanong at vear end
Durnig the year mterest income of £9162.000 2022 271600000 and fees of £214 000 12022 F394 Dix
were recogriscd in relation to these loans

A5 at 30 June 2023 ENIL{2022 LN was owed (o the Coempany by Bracken Trading Limited. a related party
bv key management persennel in commaon

Other than the transactions disclosed above, the Company's other rélated parly tranzactions were wth its
wholly owned subsidiary members of the Group.

25 oryate ol RS R T AU H‘ri(' [T

I thie opinicn of the directons, tnere 15 No wiimate controllng parsy or parent company
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26 - P

a) Derivative adjustment

Voo lave condac ea are ol pne vears socour b g realnert ST othar cornprohisns e e Came, i ation

fe Mg gonil e 30 e pilabng Lo ad hracoial ears rons 010 relatna b tae

O et ative telcarihion

srciteatizn ot Ioss asseduted o b g spec e cash fon nedge The loss vas the ecnlt of 5 efinancirg

exerdie ddertaken w JU0T ard e G Lo Aas rece ved professiong, adace wy elauon tootbe g sunning

fregtvst Upon res s 0 was disconerst the grnortsation of the 1o arealy retlected in the updated

A alue of tag casl Aoy, Peages, ara the amornsat o loss Pad incorrectl, besn rocos 1sod teege, seer 1nn

bro ot the Cash flony nedge This slio nas a consesusnce anthe cacualal on of bedye neffectieness 1he

SUmslaT e 1mose

3 E1D Srmreductcnin Ristonsa  rterest cost and ar codal ara Cpnos e redun 05 1

other comprebenss.e NE A Suarrary S ioe mepact of tne corrsc L.on oo preaded bolow whie b cludes

e gsscCatedd tga ad usiments

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £'000
et o Do e 6409 1,209 7678
[rfvmes 3 bl ot (38.145) 1,575 136,570
N N S AR 1136.049) 5,849 {141 898)
penttenT Tas ReoosEea Pl 6,603 (1435} 5164

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2022 adjustments 30 June 2022
(as stated) (restated)

Group £000 £000 £'000

L P P A P B g U

163.005) 11,088 {51,917)

B B I T T e o g 32152 [8.285) 23907
SR NETRE N A 54,410 716 55126
et Tae e st Do an s (8,161 13,013 1174

PN 141,597} 1769 127.828!

i

Soige cdinr e 2,770 112,560 19790;

B T 16,234 1574 17868

(%21
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27 o e ey T

a} Millwood Designed Homes acquisition

Oin 25 January 2073 the Group acguned MADH Group) Limmited and sts subsidianes througn the purchase of
100% of the shate cagita. b consideation of £24,161,000

[he follosing lakles sumevanse the consideraton pad oy the soup, the far value of the assets acguired, and
the sabilities assurmed at the acagusition date

Consideration =~ ... s e e , . £000
F:_:n g g O U S mm.&.m;mvl_n
Lhtectly At bltavle costs 720
Sefercd conaneraticn 2,000
Tc;alconsideration S - R _24,1;1

Details of the fair value of the net assels acguired ang goodvell arisirg are as folows

Book value Adjustments Fair value

_ £000 E000 £000

i ved zesels o T mm— 469 - 469
ntargibie sswets 331 - 331
Slex | 31651 (797) 30,854
'm0 ard ather receablze 1.363 - 1,363
Cashear A sash cguvalenits 6,771 - 8771
Trane ang wthar cronss {3,332} - (3,332)
CAS {18,860} - (18.860)
Net assets acquired 18,393 (797) 17,596
il S 6,565
Total consideration - 24,161

Gooowill resulting from the business combmation was £6 555 000 and has an estimated usefut Ife ¢ 10
years reflecting the bfespar of the asscts acquired

The cronsolidated statement of comgrehensive income for the year includes £12.604 000 revenue and a l03s

befare tax of £469.000 in respect of this acquisiticn




g

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
28 °

Cur renorted oty 3¢ precared noscoraance il Linted Kiegaom Acooonting Suandards oo

Fieancia Soepaiteyyg Sanaand 105 3z detaled 0 he ncal Stetervients slaring o page 44 of the Lo,

L TDEASLE 17 S e oAl S8 e nangial imeasares that e Lee e inde nose Lal Have been

Wecrnimate Tactols ot sl pear-C o ceA SomipEnae s These

AT renTied es s 1 angde
are Consclered aon-GaAAE Tnan & rsanings
Net debt

procde el dels nadd ton ty cssl 307 gross dedt 33 5 vean of ascestng oo Ceenal cash posimon and i

soonned ac folo s

2023 2022

- 7 o w060 £000

St A A oirats o S T T T  aazaga LAt
Ut \7 P N B _LE 125,000 6,364
Gross debt T ' 1,158,184 1,049,582
etk ese e T 56919 (256.415)
Net debt . 1,001,265 793,167
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EBITDA

Earnirgs before interest, tas, depreciataon and amortisation CFBIT DA s calcalaled oy adiusting profit afrer
tax for mterest, tax, depteciation and amortisation in addition 1o meome and expenses that da not relate 1o
the day to day cperations of the Craoup We provide EBITDA in adamior 1o proit 3ien tax as 10 alows Js W

assess our performance wathiout the effects of Gaanang &nd caoital expenditures,

The followenig table dotalis the adjustiments made 10 the 1eported results,

(restated)
2023 2022
o Note £'000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the financial year Cemmmmm——— (131559) 38,020
Acla
lvearteaticn of aan bile Gsse T Z 43,055 37849
s anmient of aagole = 936 7913
Ceprediation of waiphle auwsels 2 103,754 101,802
Irogar e s “ 21670
lerest paygabls and soriiar crpenses & 45,265 25270
Ferepnonal iterns 12,674 1,105
Tan / (17.208) 17,868
L
[P frorm otogr fived gueet invesumionts (855) {5,249
Frahil o disposal ol sl gienes 1,045 [29,532)
Irterest rece vable ard sinlas e cne = {713) {130)
EBITDA i 81,963 194917

MNote 26 details the prior pericd adjustmients
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28 A

Diztals o the sabsimar: i ddriskings an

ac oo s

Country of
Name , : incorporation
I O TR ool g
L R P R (LIt L IR LLrite g
Lol S S e g Sinpaone
‘A-ﬂ' R Fiarse
S O S Wi B e b gaom
»'-‘|:;_ ol e ey e K e
Aonbonaino by e [ L R
Aac b Lo Tempan,, e agnsm
At TR T L e f i Jetea mgdnm
Earbory s Jintes” Jeited K rgdom
St s s france
At e framee
ool [ 17 vty Urited <mgaom
Foomaten o S ST Jrirec k mgdom
Seerr cSed e e Ko gador,
S L, e el L ted Kngder
I N A N R T U I BT 0 L e K
4l B fi,‘r: by ey RS g aLm
[ R e o A ogdom
fosieatrn =1 o o e o itert ¥irgdorm
I- it Froe Cl g ted Lrited Wingdorm
R ol Upigd <z -
TR RN SN NIRRT L tes g
U IR PALE S Py dhea K g
' - = - i _ - = bt
v al e oot M. = SaKrgan
U ST &3 memgac e
- - [ 1= —_ = = Franoe
F = =g Frate
TR e _ S

Class of
shares

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Jrdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ciedhinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordimary
Ordinary
Ordimary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crrdinary

Ordimary

100%
100%

0O%
100%
100%

160%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0O%
160%
100%
100%
100%

1000

Principal

Holding activity

IT Secunty DFOVId;E’
Heolding company
Cnergy generatior
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Crergy generation
Energy generation
tnergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Fnergy generalion
Energy genergticn
Energy generation
Halding company
Holding caompany
Fnergy generaticn
Energy generation
Holding compary
Ere«gy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generalicrn
Tnergy generatcn

Energy generation
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Name

FIECTFREUUSRER T e L L an e e s o

ST ae Laro ik b
D PE de Marsarro s ar
P Haut ddu sl
Cadnsl o amesrsn e e e e
o Bty amtea

Tk birnted

Casnecl Baoar baven Lirvited”
Cattkn boeray Lt

Lobsilgey Dremed”

Cedar Dneray ance I frasre e Lorreted

LD ode

3ECone Daate Keactrs Sar!

CoPD e laSaesse S url

CTIRS Sy
Cbelson eadayy Thery Crnsted

Chislzor Salas Parrn Hetinngs Lisated ™

Chatter rg oar e Lo d”
Ctlopesyn Friergy ©miten’

Clarne Fanee e
Tlararrend Sear S Lo ted”
IR Tove e onte L ier
CIP S rencgeas Linited™

CHF o os Lt

CTRE 1991 Cerited

CLFE 1799 Drrnlec’

CLEE aslamugs Lieraled

CLEL Treopeade 1 Liecited”

LD Trepe s S ntedd”

[ R S TR N T AT T B
N SRR
CLEL R0 - 2 L ned”

CLEL R T L ted”
ETA IRt

T - A Lirrnled

Country of
incorpoeration

range
France

France

Lirvted kiradan
Lriten ki gdor
[REEIN

Lirated Kirgdam
Lrien Krgdom
Lateo K rgagm
Lt Kerqoom
Sranee

franze

Srange

Unitea Kangdzm
Jnreg Kingdam
Wnteo Kegdorn
nced Kimgdom
Jried Kimgderr
Uritzd Kingdom
Jried Kingdem
Limitcd Kingdlce
Urited Kingdom
Uniied Kingdom
Uriied Kingdom
Lirited <ngeee
Lirited «anadorm
Urated winadon
Uriied iGnador
Lred Hiradaon
Lirtled Kingdar
Lriley fargdam
Lot Krgdonr

Lratea Hir gdam

Class of
shares

P R PR T R

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ondinary
Ordinary
Ordmnary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Principal

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

S RRaEw e e A At s s

Energy generation
Energy generation
Fnergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Frergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation

Energy generation
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Name _
b-F At
Il oot
I A AT ST A 1) fulte I
S e Lreege Jnrersnds
creanaTa bnenys L by’

Cra, e Al s

s e

Craenrarsh Lrmtes”

o

Tl

Piees - cr T L e
ko druen i
T —eeer |omored”
Lann = o
[amme osere s o
Loary Hlone= Sl Leded™
Li-

[T = (oL R
e ) EE
_ah ET B ) e
N ¢ = et

_5- Liale

I R B R

[ BT B

- T

R r=r = . -
i* a t.;_ afr

.l

il

P e wele oinfold Cnrnled

Country of
incorporation

e F-oqaoem

[RINRAI Rl Tntlay

LAmen ko aaees

Lnten komatee.

e K pdoe

winea ko adoe

Uty Koo grdees

Loaes horgdom

Lriied koo

e Kimooao

Lt hingoe

Lrted Kimgoo—

L Kimanr

L orea Kingo o

vrtean b

N

Lorated Kimgaoe

Lo Ko

Auntiala

Class of

shares

Crdinary
rdinary
Ordinary
Crdmary
Crdinary

Ordimary

Crdinary

Crdinary

Crdinary

Ordmary

Crdmary

Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Ondinary
Crdimary
Ordinary
Ordinaty
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdimary
Cirdimaty
Orrdmary
Qrdimary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Zirdinary

Ordinary

Principal

quding activity

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1005%
100%
100%
100%

1G0%

Frnergy gerxa;.rat.lt;;l
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation

Development of
building prajects

Construction of
domeshic buildings

Developmoent of
bulding projects

Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre netwark
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generauon
Energy generaticn
Energy genaration
Energy generation
Frergy generation
Frorgy generation
Holding company
Holding campany
Holding company
Fnergy generation
Halding company
Energy generation
Frergy generaton
Energy generation
Fnerqy gencraton

Enoegy genecrahan
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Name
[ler sl Trarcs 23 Sy

[l sl Fromee A5 |

[kl ranee
Clocscl Tranea 415 a0

Cler wid Dignice 7~ ar ]

Ll 2ozl Hatt far e |

Cire Froroy 2 brance “A5°

[hes Frengy o Lirn e

Fioz Fracgye Srrane e » a8

B Do Holdinne 0 nnreg”
Loos Eaergy Heldings <0 miten”
Lioe Eaenyy Holdinags s sed™

Eoos Pencwando Foeqg,y Limtes’

Foa o el prnet Feanee D onted

Chrea HO'mmgs oo™

Sl Henes Henrra b Lty

lvig e iDeeminnT 20 nnes™

Slraa Hernes mararge Roarnt)d Liiled”

[t Hosrmi=e e Le 0 Lirmites ™
Clivia Hommez hantberer terted -
Fleaa Hrne itk Lirrered™

Elvia bl e Liraterd”

Cogia Bt b el

Lo JOnforg e nod”

Erva e shoabee]”

Eiea son obieres Lnte]”

Country of

incorporation

SraT e
France
trdlies
France
Crancs
lranie
Franze
Urites Kingdom
Fance
Linitea Kimgdor:
Lrized Kingdom
Lnies Kingdor

ncd Kingdo

L ed Kingdorr

United Kingdo

Urited }argdon

huied Kingdom

Lriten Kirgdarn

Jrited Kingdom

Uritec K rgoom

e Fngdrn

Uriteo Kngdom

linred Kingdm

Lined Kingdaor

L-ried Kimodoes

L ted Kingdaer

shares

Class of

Ordmary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
"Ordinary,
Deferred,

Preference”

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

e

Principal

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

1007

10065

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Energy generation
Energy generation
Cnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Hotding company
Holding company
Holding comparny
Haolding company
Holding company
Haolding company
Holding company
Construction of

domestic buildings

Financial services
holding companies

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buldings

Construction of
domeshic builldings

Development of
building projects

Ceonstruction of
domestic bulldings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
building projects

Development of
building projects

Construction of

domestic buildings
Buying and selling
of own real estate

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of

domestic builldings
Buying and selling
of own real estate
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Name
T L
L e M N R R R
RN R TR CAS |
SR et
T PR TN FRYS BT ]
L R R T T A e TR E R a g

FRR T ard e

PR Thetrod e’

Foraopts Loz, oealde g o

Lava cpt e broeray e 7

s bl Brwerge s ratd”

TN R ST DR L

ot S R TRt T t
ee HON IR
e

[ = et v )
= R
b gt L e

— I qr w7 | i
= 3 s E
- - ;

_ 0 et .
—r o 1

vy e ' L

Country of

incorporation

Poyre e

ntes himrol o

e ke 3T

e el o

Cnes K asern

res Eeanom

rred koo

ned < aaor

red <eadorn

Urited < e gdom

Uritsd < - o

Hrigd < gt

Urned = ~aaem

Uritesd < gt

Lirited < rdare

obbed A

Lrbed <mgdom

red cngda

Lrted vnndee

Irited <imgooo

Teq Mnad T

AR 14 ‘
eI
LT ed 13T

Class of
shares

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Cirdinary
Grdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordmary
Crdmary
Cirdhinary
Ordmary
Ordmary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordimary
Ordhinary
Drdinary
Crcinary
Cirdinary
Ordinary
Drainary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Grdinary

Srdimary

1007

100%
160%
100%
1G0%
100%
S00%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Q3%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

3

100%

Energy generation

Energy project
development and
managemem
SEMVICES

Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Fnergy genersticn
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holdirg company
Holding company
Energy generahen
Holding company
Holding company
Hatding company
Holding comoany

Holding compoany
Holding company

Holding company
Holding company
Holding zompany
Helding company
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Ernerqgy genegration
Halding company
Holding compary
Haolding company
Holdmg company
Supply of ferfiliser

Eneray generation
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Country of Class of Principal

o nnied kngdoes Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Gl ¥ Fren Diemed Unzed Kingden Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Leanet Bl tef drwd Kagdom Ordinary 100% ;,tgjietm’:ﬂk
):“H[i,'i"l‘:\t": “~J;Jt‘-,-.-;*rl~‘;- Ltz el Un-edkmgadom  Ordinary 100 Fibre network
ot bon e 1 production
TRt nambe W Fowed, Ceited Ured Koadew Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Citenme Wind Fane Lirated Uned Kigde Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UADNGG0 2 00 ~clata COrdinary 100% Energy generation
lartsonre Tuevel Lt d” Unted kingder Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Caytnaker An Bl td urted kmgde - Ordinary 100% Encrgy generation
g tidgker iMatewood! =alarys Liniled” United Kingdom  Ordinary 100% Holding company
Hapmaker iNatewoodt Lie™ Unaed Kmgdem - Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Favrnake s akuands bochsngs Dirated” orited Kingdom Ordinary 100% Holding company
Hayraaker iCak an el 107 driteg Kingdont Ordinary 100% Energy generation
ol Poeer 2 Lieried orited Kmador Ordinary 100% Holding company
Helrn Poweer | nmited™” sried Kingdem  Ordinary 100% Holding company
Hicher <mapp Fare Linetea™ wrea kingdor Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hi Ena b | oeratesd™ urited Kirgderr Ordinary 100% Lnergy generation
Hedamesese anted” United Kingdorn Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hull esetve Fowver Lm en”™ Lritee Kingdors Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Forsr SPV L Lnied Untea Kirgdermn Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Frmurghizr Feese Dated Untes Kingdorm Ordinary 100% Energy generation
[rgestl Bt L tedd LUmter Kirgdorn Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Jarrescn Reoad Froer gy Linesed™ Untes Kingdom  Crrdinary 100% Energy generation
Jurassic Tt Heochngs 1o s Umitec kurgdom Ordinary 10U% Holding company
Jurassi - boee Lot d” Urtez Kingdom Ordinary 100% E:gjur;et:g?[k
S e L oreed” Unted Kirgden Grdinary 100% Energy generation
LEIGUT R eper Cpntedd Untedkirgoom  Crdinary 100% Energy generation
_enhant Solae Liete UrcedMirggom  Crdinary 100% Energy generation
_ete T e et o Untedkirgeom  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
_theren sadar a1 ded Unedirgdom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Pl mrrnanca ses bd” Lnted ir goon - Chrdinary 100% Fibre network

production
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I

t

e That sl Ly

s
Farte s o

ey

oy Linede o

N (R S N R LN TE b

ST S NTAFR NS

atte b e e

Class of

shares

Ordinary
Crdinary
Jrdinary
Crdinary
Cirdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Chrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crrdinary

Crdinary

Crdinary

Crdinary

Ordmary

Ordinary
QOrdinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

Crd nary

Holding

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

160%

1C0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

(00%

SO0

1007

100%

100%

Principal
activity

Lrnergy generanon
Cneray generation
Cnergy generaticn

Fiore notwark
producton

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy genecration
Encrgy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company

Holding company

Acset leasing
company

Holding company
Holding comuoany
Holding company
Energy generation

Construction of
domestic buldngs

Construction of
domestic bullongs

Construction of
domestic builoings

Construction of
domestic buildngs

Halding company
Erergy generaiion
Erorgy generauon
Erergy generation
Ernergy generaticn
Energy generation
Frnergy generation
Erergy generation

Tnergy generation
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Name

+

Sk

RN ST PR STER I
el Ty byt
gone Fossecr Freaben”
ol iy T o

Cactns Iracera Sodath anoted Tprecasl, 7

Heathoare Cimnted - conmbo lowdstion ¢ /f
Coactus Trgoma Mot berateo ferevio o

Hesirmsl Lim e - st hecedatien 24

¢

Cactus Cortral Lnoeted iprencus

[arners Linnbods

.
|

it Wyed e bl Solar Lomnten™
Praaltreess Barton L ed”

Fareiad Helg e Linntea”

Farciad it o

bare Broadber el Levrad ™!

Fmgrtial sedar 2

Pale e oo ancineer Arheid & S <dbatoqd Loy

Fitts Far L o™

Fonthios Soelst Liny e

Fpms Larre S lar Lla™

Qancelond Care nmited”

Sancetord Clhertsey Liroed”

fangetore Crencester Limitaa™

Fangefora e Larterd e aously,

Ohoevell Lirany

Fanneiora bast Cirmstesd Limiten
Faget o bclonrgs Limced

Faneperord P ke oy ot

Fammgerondd BAT L e

B R T T

srect Bt Farre eitegT

s Bl g Leited

e Healthie an

sracwoage Il Sola Ho arss Dimeed

T ns Tare Roac Erenay Lorete d”

Country of
incorporation

Class of

shares

R i

fared Kingdoe

Jated kirgaon

e Kirgaom

]

s e Hroaon.

nea i gaor

dnted Kirgao

Jned Kirgoe m

Jned Kirgdom

Lvied “argdam
Uricd <irgdem
Hrited Kirgdom
Linted Kirgdorm

Urited Kingdem

Urited K.ngdom

Lited Kngdom
Urited K-gdom
Urirce Kingdom
Lritce Kingdom
Limitea Kingdom

Linted Kingdom

Urrer Kingdorm

L e Kingdone

Urteo Kirgdom

Jnted Kingoon

Jmied Kingd o

Jrnid Kirgdom

JAnced Kirgdom

et < goom

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordiary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Crdinary
Crdinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Holding

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

160%

100%
100%

100%

1003%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activity

Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company

Provision of
healthcare services

Provision of
heslthcare services

Holding company

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Energy generation

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirement village
development

Retirement village
development

Care services for a
retirement vitlage

Retirerment village
development

Holding company

Retirement village
development

Retirernent willage
development
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Name .
Ay ferd Aot et b =
g roed S elond D e
Foasbar bar cente
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Progmobotate Lo by
sethime w o |
o sdrabear ey
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LA b neetens
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art - Gl
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B I I

coaatal L

Jlmaital o= H-
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vo- EPE
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Country of

incorporation

L=~ g -

Pt g =imsan s

Lhoted e

I ited g

o

e Sea e

Fra~ce

AR

Lires Kennas

Hr e e gdos

e e g

o gh

ten

el Anado

Lreea <nzdo

Fezrre

Frence

Frarce

France

Freace
Frse oe
Frae -

THeT

(R IR [
e b 10!
P ad
3 ad

e K omgoc

rr

-

il

rr

rm

n"

n

Class of
share_s

O-dinary
Drchinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordiniary
Crdinary
Circinary
Ordinary
Cechnary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Crdinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Circhinary
Ordinary
Ordmary
Drdinary
Oredinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

Cirdinary

Holding

160%

100%

005

1C0%

100%

1C0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

1C0

8

Principal
a_cti\_rit__y

Helding comaany

Renrement village
development

Encrgy gencraticn
Energy generaticn
Erergy generation
Energy generation

Construction of
domestic buildings

Crergy generation

Fibre network
production

Holding compary
Enerqgy generation
Frerqy generation
Energy generation
Energy genesation

Supply of biomass
fuel

Holding company
Crergy generation
Erergy generaticn
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generaticn
Enecrgy generation
Energy generation
Lnergy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generaton
Erergy generation
Erergy aeneration
frergy generation

Dormant company

Faloirg company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Country of Class of Principal

Name - Jncoporation  shares Holding activiy ..
S stor - reng Lot sacea kewasm Ordinary 100% Energy generation
il Traefeen I‘ms:‘-m [i- Lcen boogun NA 50% Dormant LLP
Cumnle, gtz IR Lontes bingaom NA 50% Lormant | L P

S by e O e oo e Lntes kiagdom Ordinary 100% ;\rbcrsur;?t;ork

s ch e b e Lo Kegeem  Ordinary 100% Holding company
s she T bre Mete, ove Linnired” e Kingoom Ordinary 100% ggsur;it;\frk
Secebs [ e oo b nnten” Lntes kisgacm Ordinary 100% ;\rt;rdcuncit;vnork
sk B bEre voreshipe cnnted Lates Kagaem  Ordinary 100% grt;rsuncitgfrk
ToC S ar LOe Lemted” Unteaiingaom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
T Sovar Do T rmited” Unted Kingeern Ordinary 100% Fnergy gencration
TG0 Lo ar i anen” Lntes kingoem Ordinary 100% Energy generation
P Sar B L e’ e Kingdem  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
P be Pocer Dormpar y omited” Uateakingdem  Ordinary 100% Holding company
[oe lelhes 5oy Tareemted” Unted Kingoom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Thorensy Fetars ilaaos, s Lonted Lnteaingderm Ordinary 100% Encrgy generation
T limghant Possect D o™ Unned Kingdem - Ovdinary 100% Energy generation
Todhnle Fnergy Lt Jritzd kingdem - Orrdinary 100% Energy generation
Hesoear ke Lingered Jnwedkingdom  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Turees Selar i ted” Jrsed kingders - Ordinary 100% Energy generation
PIREE 15 Scdar Lirrited Jrted Kingdors - Ordinary 130% Energy generation
Pneed M ores Dnery iomited” dnited Kingdem  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
wUSE e Jrited Kisgder Ordinary 100% ;Lti)rsur;et‘t;\lfqork
ICTOTE Sl ot | it drned Kingdor Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Uiners Frsn s it Jrted Kingdem Ordinary 100% Holding company

Fibre network

At ey al Lesated” Jntedwingdort Ordinary Q0% Broduction
. . Fibre network
Wt LI Lrited -«anadea 4
fm Lt ried ng Ordinary 100% producticn
valtafrance TS5 arl France Crdinary 100% Frergy generation
Wolaltane s 1SS | Frare Crdinary 100% Crergy generation
Yodlaltane e B Ca | France Crdinary 100% Energy generation

yoltafranee sarl Trance Crdinary 160% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares Holding activity
IR R cea- i Ordinary S0% Hoiding company
S Lo RPN RIES Ordimary 100% HQE network
production
R e village
ads il T eeca L reted” Lo aaen Ordingry 100% etirement vilage

operalar

Sewvice charge

FUNETH DT S GNANTSLI U RN § IS I (R ] PR e e Ordi 0o%
r Lirate 1dder rdinary 100 admiristrator

CSTRTT N 1Ol S ST T LIS oresae o Girdmary 100% Energy generation
A R I A R Nt cwescadom o Ordinary 100% Holding cornpany
lateriovs G e Fosdo D mhag” cowedoygden Ordinary 100% Fncrgy generation
FUER N TR I NI I wrcenegdeen Ordinary 100% Energy generation
sl o e Linted CrRn g ord.nary 100% Energy generation
ST LAt L ned Jres tador Ordinary 100% Energy generation

ettt Frwrg e ey dnvee <mgdom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sobarl Poasor sl sewesegdom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
e e nmlken sutea wegden Ordinary 100% Energy generation
o ST S B At b WO T e wessgdeen Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
e s Sodar M g Lo o deec s radeen Ordinary 100% Haolding company

P IR IR TSN DA TR, by e cegde Ordinary 100% Eriergy generation

e 4egde Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn

‘
o
--

Voo L Bradtor s Cenite e guee Ordingry 100% Energy generation
O B L S I AN R E cen g Oedinagry 100% Holding corrpany
P e TN T O Jeeztogaze Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn

SO Zarcda e o Jezzamgaem Ordinary 100% Energy generation

k- IS INTR I Jozs<aus Oedinary 100% Energy generatian
ells I ez amgzem Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Incorporated/Acquired after year end Date

T T BT e T T I L Ty W

L 17/11/2023

[ PTR 511272023
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Dissolyed ot sold during the year and up yntil signing Date

LRRTNE R

Oy O dhal Enerope Re

e ow = - weascer T I VA A S ey i

12/09/2022

Commel Lid 15/09/2022
Coarheglton Fong Hodos 2t Dorted 08/07/2022
Caamgtn Fomt soan barms Pty Lateg 08/07/2022
Courdralon Pont SLoncdcs 2y o ted 08/07/2022
Cularca W Heldoo PTY ud 24/10/2023
Culasca Erergy Froes: Holdeo Co By Lid 24/10/2023
Culacca Ercrey Frogecs To P Lio 24/10/2023

Dulacca Frergy Froeo FinCo FTY Lid 24/10/2023

The reqistercd office of all cornpan es bsted above s at 6th Floor, 33 Holbom, London, England, ECIN 2HT

excepl tor those set out helow

1
2.

SR S R

© o

s Greylxowska 2/29, G0-131, Watsaw, Poland

Pinsent Masons LLP. Capital Square, S8 Maorrson Street Tdinburgn, Scotland, EH3 8B

1 West Renont Street, Glasgow, GZ AP

22 rye Alphonse de Neuville, 75017 Faas, France

&b Fleor 2 Srand Canal Sguare, Dublin 2. DOP A342, Iretand

The Carnage House Staticn Works, Stanon Road. Claverdon, Warwickshire, Unites Kingdem, CV35 SFE
Zone mdustrielle de Courtine 115 Rae Du Mourelet 84000 Avignon. [rarice

13 Salisbury Place, London, England, WIH 1H)

The Corporation Trust Company, Carporation Trust Center. 1209 Crange Street, Wilhmgton 19801,
United States

4th Floor Saltire Court 20 Castle Terrace, Ldinburgh, Scotand, BEHL 2EN
Apalo House, Mercury Fark Wycaombe Lane, Wooburn Green, High Wycombe, England, HPLO 0HH

Level 33101 Cellins Street, Metbourne, Yictona, 3000, Australia
Reaufcr: Couwrt, Lgg Farm Lane, Kings Langley, Hertfordshre, WG4 8LR
7-8 Stratford Place, London, England, WIC 1AY

Broadwalk House, 5 Appold Street, London, United Kngdom, EC2ZA 2AG

The directers believe that the carryng valie of the investiments 1s supported by thelr underlyimg net assets
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Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Tradimg Linites s an unnste s sompans Cooe s mosoh, oan Board of Direcsors amaes g prow at wehinc bl

wal b walling oo ssae e thares The share pace s argadied

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19

18

§ //W
L e
15

14

13

12

11

10 '
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Fertsrmance s calculated based o e sale poie for Fera's criares ar 2 Luee 0ath vear 7 hie shiste pnce s

not subject o audit by sins & vouan 1R
Annual discrete performance

Financial Year

Discrete share price performance
June F027-272 3.10%

Tane 2GA1-22 - - 9.91%
Jure 2020 21 ' - 487%
CLie 2005 20 - 0.33%
urg 2018 1"—.‘; | o 7 6.23% -
Tune 2017-18 - V - " 105%
June 2012 1 - 7 554% 7
e 251N V 7 3.83%

3.98%

3.72%
R 3.97%

RIVERC A B B 1.02%
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6 | COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors and advisers

Directors : Registered office

PS5 Latham DoBth Floon 33 “olborm,

KJ willey Polondon, bnglana ECIN 2HT
PO Tarlonwy

I Aribur . Independent auditors
S Grant lappomntes 1 January A8 Dornst b Young LR

: 2ediord House,
Company secretary 16 Bedford Sheet
Octopus Company Secretanal Sarvices |nted Belfast 212 7D

Company number
12601636

Forward-looking statements

Thie Annual Report contars certain forward-locking statements reiated 10 the Company s fule hasingss
and francial performarnce anad titure events or developrmrents These statements are baced on the current
rnowledge and oxpedctations of management and are subyect Lo assampliors, Asks and anceriantos, sente
of which are related to factors that are beyond the control of the Compary Accoraingly, no assursnee can
he gven tnat any parbicdlar excectation will be met and forward Iooang statements regarding past rends or
activities should not be taken as a regresentation that such trends ar activives wil continue in the future. Fast
perforimance cannct be relicd on as a guide (1 future perforrance Notfung n this Aqnual Report shieald be

canstruec as a profit forecast




